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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to review
with you the performance and development of the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group generated revenue
of approximately HK$1,847.7 million representing a significant
increase of 34.1% as compared with approximately 1,378.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“the Previous Year”). Profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2014 was approximately HK$771.1 million representing
a significant increase of 43.4% as compared with approximately
HK$537.9 million for the Previous Year.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cent per share for the financial year (2013: HK1.0 cent per share).
No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30
September 2013 and 2012.

During the year under review, global market sentiment was lifted
by improving economic outlook in the United States, and the
stabilizing conditions in Euro-zone with signs of climbing out of
recession. Hong Kong equity market enjoyed a relatively buoyed
trading with the average daily turnover of the securities market as
HK$60.6 billion, an increase of 8% year-on-year. Meanwhile, IPO
market also regained its momentum, with a total of 87 newly-listed
companies. Leveraging on the positive market situation and the
Group’s leading position as a one-stop financial service provider,
the Group achieved a solid result with total revenue generated
from the financial service business segment of approximately
HK$889.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
approximately HK$617.0 million).

The Group’s gaming business in Macau continued to perform
favorably and contributed solid revenue of approximately
HK$710.9 million (2013: approximately HK$542.8 million), up by
31.0% year-on-year. As Macau continues to reinforce its reputation
as one of the world’s most vibrant tourism destinations, we believe
the long-term development of the gaming business remains
promising. For its hotel operation, mainly comprised of guest
rooms, food and beverage sale and other rental income, the Group
generated a revenue of approximately HK$246.9 million for the
year under review (2013: approximately 218.2 million).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEE

Looking ahead, we are positive about an upward development of
Hong Kong securities market. With the recent announcement of
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, a scheme that allows Hong
Kong and mainland investors to buy stocks in each other’s market,
we foresee the trading volume in Hong Kong stock market will
continue to boom. As a qualified and active market participant in
securities brokerage, we are well prepared to tap into any business
opportunities presented.

In view of the introduction of After-Hours Futures Trading (AHFT)
which enables market participants to hedge or adjust their
positions in response to market news and events during the
European and U.S. business days, we promptly reallocated
manpower resources to ascertain the change and customers’
needs. With the extension of the closing time of AHFT by the end
of this year, we are optimistic to benefit from the growing trading
activities.

The Group will also continue to leverage our strong equity capital
markets client base to capture the market share in corporate
finance advisory business and actively explore potential business
opportunities with the existing clients.

The Board is confident that both Hong Kong and Macau
economies will benefit from the sustainable economic development
in China. Given the increasingly affluent Chinese middle class who
has strong appetite for travel and leisure, the management has
strong faith in the hotel and gaming business prospect in Macau.
The Group continuously pursues various marketing and
promotional activities to perfect its membership programmes,
retaining and attracting customers. We will also strengthen our
relationship with travel agencies and offer packages and joint
promotions with business partners so as to broaden the scope of
customers of the two hotels.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to
our board of directors, dedicated team of the Group professionals
for their unwavering commitment and passion for the business for
the past years. | also express my sincere appreciation to all our
valued service and business partners as well as you the
shareholder for the encouraging support.

By Order of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A wm M AT

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the result of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of a wide range
of financial services which include securities underwriting and
placements, margin and initial public offering financing, securities
brokerage, corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage
and asset management services. The Group also provides gaming
and hospitality services in Macau.

The Group’s turnover was approximately HK$1,847,685,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2014, representing a significant increase of
34.1% as compared with approximately HK$1,377,988,000 for the
Previous Year.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$771,060,000, representing a significant increase of 43.4% as
compared with approximately HK$537,884,000 for the Previous
Year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in income from
securities brokerage, underwriting and placement, margin and IPO
financing and casino business. The basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 March 2014 was HK4.44 cents (2013: HK3.10
cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR B A am M AT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

2013 marked a year of the global financial crisis hangover period.
The European economy was undergoing a long climb back to the
new normal. Meanwhile, the Beige Book surveys released by the
U.S. Federal Reserve indicated signs of modest to moderate
expansion in the region. On this side, the Hong Kong market
continued to enjoy trading prosperity. For the year ended 31 March
2014, the average daily turnover of the Hong Kong securities
market was HK$60.6 billion, an increase of 8% when compared
with HK$56.3 billion for the same period last year. Furthermore,
Hong Kong’s IPO market was on track to regain its position, having
a total of 87 newly-listed companies during the year, as compared
to 45 reported IPOs for the corresponding period in 2013. The
booming local financial market definitely played an important role
for driving up the Company’s business activities this year.

As for the Macau casino operation, the steady growth in the city’s
overall gaming revenue boosted by an increase in the number of
Chinese visitors had positive impact on the operation. During the
year, total gross gaming revenue in Macau reached MOP377.7
billion, up 20% as compared to MOP315.1 billion for the
corresponding period last year.

Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and
Placements

Securities underwriting and placement services is one of the main
revenue streams of the Group. The Group undertakes the
origination, structuring and marketing of placements of equity and
equity-related securities. It also provides comprehensive solutions
to clients’ financing needs. The Group has successfully undertaken
the roles of placing agents and underwriters for listed companies
in a wide range of industries.

During the year, this segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$200,698,000 (2013: HK$150,578,000), representing an
increase of 33.3% as compared with the Previous Year, which also
accounted for 22.6% (2013: 24.4%) of the Group’s financial service
segment revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A wm M AT

Margin and IPO Financing

Margin and IPO financing services are provided by the Group to
complement its securities brokerage business. Margin financing is
made available to clients who have opened margin accounts with
the Group to purchase securities with funds borrowed from it to
leverage their investments. IPO financing is the grant of loans to
clients for subscriptions of shares relating to an IPO.

During the year, revenue generated from the margin and IPO
financing segment amounted to approximately HK$659,204,000
(2013: HK$453,410,000), representing a significant increase of
45.4% as compared to the Previous Year, which also accounted
for 74.1% (2013: 73.5%) of the Group’s financial service segment
revenue.

Other Financial Services — Corporate Finance
Advisory Services, Futures Brokerage and Asset
Management

Complementing the securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, and margin and IPO financing, the Group also
provides a full range of financing services to its clients including
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

The Group holds licence under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to engage in advising on corporate finance activities.
The scope of services provided includes advising on corporate
finance transactions and advising clients on financing strategies in
the context of mergers and acquisitions, equity fund raising
exercises, takeovers and other notifiable transactions.

The Group provides brokerage services for index futures trading
on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange. Clients can place orders on
the internet in addition to telephone. In addition, After Hours Future
Trading has been launched on 8 April 2013.

The Group also provides portfolio management services. The asset
management business generates revenue by charging
management fees and incentive fees based on the amount of
assets under management, and returns of portfolios, respectively.

During the year, this segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$29,990,000 (2013: HK$12,980,000), representing a drastic
increase of 131.0% as compared to the Previous Year, which also
accounted for 3.3% (2013: 2.1%) of the Group’s financial service
segment revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR B A am M AT

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

Goodwill has arisen upon the Group’s acquisition of financial
services business completed in April 2011. An independent
professional valuer was engaged to perform impairment
assessment on the goodwill. It was found that the recoverable
amount of all 3 cash generating units, namely the Placing and
Underwriting segment, the Margin and IPO Financing segment and
the Corporate Finance segment, exceed their respective carrying
amount. Under this circumstance, no impairment on the goodwill is
considered necessary.

Hotel Business

The Group’s hotel operation, mainly comprising hotel rooms, food
and beverage sale and other rental income, continued to provide
solid return to the Group. The revenue for the year ended 31 March
2014 amounted to approximately HK$246,896,000 (2013:
HK$218,220,000), representing an increase of 13.1% as compared
to the Previous Year. Hotel business contributed 25.8% (2013:
28.7%) of the total hotel and gaming business turnover. During the
year, the average occupancy rates of the two hotels, namely Casa
Real and Grandview were approximately 89% (2013: 88%) and 84%
(2013: 80%) respectively. With full scale of newly renovated guest
rooms, the Group was in the better position to solicit high quality
guests to further enhance profitability in the hotel segment. Sales
would be more diversified into different markets of the world.

Gaming Business

The Group’s casino operation is run by the licence holder
Sociedade De Jogos De Macau, S.A.. The two casinos consistently
provided solid contributions to the Group in line with the rapid
development of the gaming industry in Macau. To retain quality
customers and attract potential ones, the Group strengthened its
membership programmes and provided a variety of incentives for
members to increase their spending in the casinos as well.

Casino revenue, including gaming revenue and food and beverage
sale in casino, amounted to approximately HK$710,897,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2014, representing an increase of 31.0% as
compared to approximately HK$542,800,000 of the Previous Year.
Casino revenue accounted for 74.2% (2013: 71.3%) of total hotel
and gaming business turnover.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A wm M AT

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has 59 (2013: 61) tables in the 2
mass market halls, 12 (2013: 11) tables in the 2 self-managed VIP
rooms and 240 (2013: 255) slot machines and 140 (2013: 140) live
baccarat machines in the 2 electronic gaming halls. The live
baccarat machines at Casa Real brought additional crowd to the
property, achieving synergy with the slot machines business as
well.

Trading of listed securities

During the year, the global equity market experienced moderate
ups and downs and Hong Kong was in general in line with it. The
market value of the trading securities held by the Group during the
year recorded a revaluation deficit of approximately HK$2,425,000
(2013: HK$759,000). As at 31 March 2014, the Group was holding
trading securities of approximately HK$48,692,000 (2013:
HK$50,121,000) in market value.

Inventory consumed

Inventory consumed represents the cost of guest supplies and food
and beverage consumed upon provision of accommodation and
catering services to the customers. During the year, it amounted to
approximately HK$22,175,000 (2013: HK$22,697,000).

Staff costs

Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$190,209,000 (2013:
HK$169,226,000). Such an increase was mainly due to increase in
compensation and benefits to employee to match market rates.
Packages commensurate with employees’ qualifications and
experience were provided to retain good employees in the Group
as well as to hire potential talents.

Gaming commission
Gaming commission represents amount paid as an incentive for
attract customers. The commission paid by the Group was in line
with market level. During the year, it amounted to approximately
HK$163,685,000 (2013: HK$170,827,000). The commission rates
were stable during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represent rent and rates, legal and
professional fees, advertising and Macau property tax. During the
year, it amounted to approximately HK$106,592,000 (2013:
HK$122,688,000). Overall expenses had been controlled as the
Group has been adopting a prudent cost management during the
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR B A am M AT

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly represent operating expenses
for hotel rooms and gaming facilities and promotion expenses.
During the year, it amounted to approximately HK$164,675,000
(2013: HK$64,334,000). The increase was mainly due to increase
in gaming promotion expenses for VIP room which was in line with
the significant increase in revenue from casino business during the
year.

Intangible Assets Held for Sale and Impairment
Loss
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The intangible assets held for sale represented the costs of the 15
subsurface mineral permits acquired as part of the settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with the borrower of a
loan receivable. The settlement was completed on 7 June 2013
(the “Closing Date”).

The permits are granted by the Saskatchewan Ministry of Energy
and Resources, currently known as the Ministry of the Economy of
Saskatchewan, in 2008 to prospect for subsurface minerals in
mining Elk Point, Saskatchewan, Canada with area of
approximately 3,989.95 square kilometers.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the borrower shall have the
right to purchase all the permits by unilateral written notice to the
Group at an exercise price of CAD82,000,000 net of any liability
within 180 days from the Closing Date. The right lapsed on 5
December 2013.

The permits are presented as intangible assets held for sale
following the intention of the Group’s management to dispose of
these permits. It is expected that the permits will be sold within
twelve months from the date of classification.
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In accordance with HKFRS 5 the intangible assets held for sale
have been written down to their fair value less costs to sell of
HK$322,685,000. This is a non-recurring fair value measurement.

An impairment loss of HK$74,741,000 has been recognised on the
measurement of the intangible assets held for sale to fair value less
costs to sell, mainly due to decline in mineral price.

The valuations of intangible assets held for sale were carried out
by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer who holds
recognised and relevant professional qualifications and has recent
experience in the location and category of the intangible assets
held for sale being valued.

The fair value less costs to sell of the intangible assets held for sale
as at 31 March 2014 is measured using in-situ resource method
under the market-based approach. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the intangible assets held for
sale are based on the independent professional valuer’s best
estimate.

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were as
follows:

Expected ore tonnage (million tonnes) 4,906-7,520
Mining and processing recovery 55%-85%
Total discount on the price multiple 40%

The fair value measurement is positively correlated to expected
ore tonnage, and mining and processing recovery while it is
negatively correlated to total discount on the price multiple.

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in the expected ore tonnage
by 1% would have affect the Group’s profit by increase/decrease
HK$3,220,000.

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in the mining and processing
recovery by 1% would increase the Group’s profit by
HK$9,720,000/decrease by HK$9,580,000 respectively.
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As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in the total discount on the
price multiple by 1% would have affect the Group’s profit by
decrease/increase HK$5,370,000.

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements are the same as disclosed above.

Further information on the valuation:

1.  Principle assumptions and inputs in this valuation
The independent valuer has adopted certain specific
assumptions in the valuation and the major ones are as
follows:

° According to the resource estimates from the latest
independent technical report, the expected ore
tonnage would range from 4,906 million tonnes to 7,520
million tonnes;

° The mining recovery was assumed to be 55%, while the
processing recovery was 85%, with reference to some
reference books regarding potash mining;

o As compared to the recent market transaction
regarding potash mines, a discount of 40% was applied
on the price multiple; and

° All relevant legal approvals and business certificates or
licenses to operate the business in the localities in
which the intangible assets are operated or intend to
be operated would be officially obtained and renewable
upon expiry.
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2. Underlying reasons for any significant changes in the
value of the inputs and assumptions
There are four key inputs in this valuation, namely the mineral
prices, expected ore tonnage, mining and processing
recovery, and total discount on the price multiple.

The only change in the value of the inputs and assumptions
is the mineral prices adopted between 7 June 2013 and 31
March 2014. As extracted from the World Bank Group, the
price of muriate of potash under standard grade declined
from US$393 per tonne in May 2013 to US$309.5 per tonne
in March 2014 due to the increase in worldwide potash
production and supply.

3. Reasons to adopt this valuation method

In estimating the value of the intangible assets, the
independent valuer has taken into account the current status
of the intangible assets and relevant information of the
intangible assets as provided by the Company. The
independent valuer has considered three generally accepted
valuation approaches, namely income-based approach,
market-based approach and asset-based approach. The
income-based approach was not appropriate since there
were not any mining plans and feasibility study available at
this stage. The asset-based approach was also not
appropriate since it could not reflect the true value of the
intangible assets. With reference to the resource estimates
from the latest independent technical report in relation to the
intangible assets, in-situ resource method under the market-
based approach has been adopted in this estimation. It is a
fair and reasonable market practice to apply the in-situ
resource method when mine plan is not available for
assessing the value of mineral permits. As the in-situ
resource method under market-based approach on “as-is”
basis was adopted to value the Permits, no discounted cash
flows, projections of profits, earning or cash flows were
included in the estimation.

4. Any subsequent changes in the valuation method
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the
year.

Finance cost

During the year, finance cost represents the effective interest
expense on promissory notes. It amounted to approximately
HK$58,800,000 (2013: HK$56,552,000).
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Financial service segments

Looking forward, a number of factors may contribute to the growth
of the industry. First, the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (HKEx) announced the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect program in April 2014. The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong and Shanghai Stock Exchange will establish mutual order-
routing connectivity, and enable investors of their respective
market to trade designated equity securities listed in the other’s
market. The program may create momentum for the long-term
development of the Hong Kong capital market. We are ready to
provide full support for the implementation of the scheme.

Second, the introduction of After-Hours Futures Trading (AHFT) in
April 2013 enables market participants to hedge or adjust their
positions in response to market news and events during the
European and U.S. business days. We, as an active Stock
Exchange Participant firm, warmly welcomed the system and has
immediately executed staff reallocation to facilitate the change
accordingly. The HKEx will extend the close of its AHFT from
11 pm to 11:45 pm from 3 November 2014, increasing AHFT's
overlap with the business hours in key European and North
American markets. We believed that extending the session will
further enhance trade volume, thus raising the turnover from our
trading services.

Last but not least, Hong Kong signed the 10th supplement for
Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA) during the year.
Qualified Hong Kong-funded financial institutions will be allowed to
set up joint venture fund management companies in the Mainland,
marking further step towards trade liberalization between Mainland
and Hong Kong. We believe the combination of the abovementioned
may bring more new advantages in the Hong Kong financial market,
and we have already equipped ourselves to explore and take
actions should suitable opportunities arise.
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Hotel and gaming segments

Regarding the Group’s Macau business, the last batch of the hotel
guest rooms renovation was done in July 2013, and the Group is
planning to have further retouching in other parts of the properties
to advance the overall image. Although lack of manpower
continued to be a challenge in Macau for all industries, the Group
shall regularly review and provide competitive remuneration to the
Group’s talents for maintaining quality services to guests.
Furthermore, although the Tourism Law effective from 1 October
2013 results in less tours visiting Macau, the Group’s hotels turned
the focus on Free Individual Travellers well before, mitigating that
effect to a great extent.

The Group continuously pursues various marketing and promotion
activities through the comprehensive membership programmes.
Our guests enjoy impressive services within the Group’s properties
with the use of our casino package. In view of the consistent
growth in membership base of the programmes, the Group will
further enhance the programmes to attract new customers.

Active floor management will be continuously in place in the
electronic gaming halls, bringing extra revenue to the gaming
segment.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 March 2014 the shareholders’ fund and net current assets
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$15,881,791,000
(2013: HK$14,813,577,000) and approximately HK$1,796,763,000
(2013: HK$1,128,243,000) respectively. On the same date, the
Group had cash and bank balance of approximately
HK$210,861,000 (2013: HK$188,102,000) and the current ratio
was 1.2 (2013: 1.2).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,324,000,000 (2013: HK$150,000,000),
amounts due to shareholders of approximately HK$2,847,111,000
(2013: HK$1,661,111,000), loan from a related company of
approximately HK$2,952,639,000 (2013: HK$2,289,821,000),
promissory notes of HK$Nil (2013: HK$961,200,000) and
subordinated loans of approximately HK$700,000,000 (2013:
HK$700,000,000). On the same date, the net gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings less bank and cash
balances over net assets, was 48% (2013: 38%).
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The following table details the Cash and bank balances — general
account and bank loan of the Group at the end of the reporting
period denominated in original currencies:

TREFINBEHRAREEEHEZAEER
T RRITHEEE — —REP RBITER

2014
—E-NE
HKD CNY usD JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
B AR E AE #Figr W BN BT
(000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  ('000)  (000)  ('000)  ('000)
(Fx) (Fr) (Fr) (Fx) (Fr) (Fr) (Fx) (Fr)
Cash and bank balances Be RBITHES
— general account ——KEP 169,842 14,419 6 100 87 8 9 21,607
Bank loan RITER 1,324,000 - - - - - - -
2013
—T-=F
HKD CNY Usb JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
BT ARE e AE  #iET HE BT BT
(000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (0OO)  (000)  ('0QO)
(F) (Fr) (F) (F) (Fr) (F) (F) (F)
Cash and bank balances Be LTS
— general account ——REP 159,030 4,425 358 100 46 8 6 19,740
Bank loan RITER 150,000 - - - - - - -
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT AERIAREE

LIABILITIES

Details of commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group as at
31 March 2014 are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year ended 31 March 2014, no material fluctuation was
noted on the Company’s overall share capital structure.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cents (2013: HK1.0 cent) per Share for the year ended 31 March
2014 (“Final Dividend”), amounting to approximately
HK$260,467,000 (2013: HK$173,645,000). The proposed Final
Dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM
and a resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders for voting at
the AGM. If the resolution for the proposed Final Dividend is
passed at the AGM, the proposed Final Dividend will be payable
on 5 September 2014 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 27 August 2014.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at AGM
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
15 August 2014 (Friday)
18 August 2014 (Monday)
to 19 August 2014 (Tuesday)

Book close date

Record date 19 August 2014 (Tuesday)

AGM 19 August 2014 (Tuesday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed Final Dividend
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
25 August 2014 (Monday)
26 August 2014 (Tuesday)
to 27 August 2014 (Wednesday)

Book close date

Record date 27 August 2014 (Wednesday)

Final Dividend payment date 5 September 2014 (Friday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM and
for the proposed Final Dividend, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong before the above latest time to lodge transfers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 41% of the Group’s total revenue
and the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer were
approximately 37% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases and service received during the year
ended 31 March 2014 attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and
service received.
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At no time during the year ended 31 March 2014 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company, which to
the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, have an interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed a total of approximately
877 (2013: 880) staff. The total staff cost for the year ended 31
March 2014 was approximately HK$190,209,000 (2013:
HK$169,226,000). The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary adjustment are assessed based on their work performance,
working and professional experiences and the prevailing market
condition.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had pledged clients’ securities at a
value of approximately HK$7,465,202,000 (2013: HK$6,563,506,000)
to secure certain banking facilities provided to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
During the year, the Group acquired 15 subsurface mineral permits
through a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Canada for
cancellation of a loan receivable. Details are set in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition
nor disposal conducted by the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

The Group’s Risk Management Committee has put in place credit
management policies and procedures which cover the examination
of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and
review of the margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the
Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in accordance with
the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management
Committee with toleration and exception reports reviewed by
Responsible Officers and senior management of the Group as well
as by the Risk Management Committee at regular meetings.
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Market risk

If the market value of a margin client’s portfolio falls below his
margin loan amount and the margin client fails to meet margin
calls, the Group will be exposed to the risk that the margin loan
being delinquent. Similarly, if the value of the underlying products
of a client’s futures contract fluctuates such that the outstanding
balances in his account falls below the required maintenance
margin level, the Group may suffer loss if the client’s account
incurs loss even after liquidation of the open position. The
management of the Group keeps close monitoring of the market
condition so that immediate precautionary measures will be taken
to reduce such risk that the Group may encounter. Follow up
actions such as reducing the margin ratio for the pledged
securities and requiring clients to top up their position would be
taken if considered appropriate.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk arising from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and clients. The goal of liquidity
management is to enable the Group to adequately fund such
business commitments as well as to comply with relevant financial
resources rules applying to various licensed subsidiaries. To
address the risk, the Group’s Accounts Department and the senior
management will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has also put in place stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working capital is adequate
to meet its financial obligations.

Interest rate risk

The Group charged interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of fund plus mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposit with banks are primarily at floating rates. Financial
liabilities such as bank loans are primarily at floating rates. The
Group income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s hotel revenues are mostly denominated in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”), and given the exchange rate of MOP has been
fairly stable, its exposure to exchange rate risk is considered to be
limited.

The Group’s financial service businesses and gaming revenue are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and hence no
significant exchange rate risk is identified.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
loan receivable that are denominated in a currency other than its
functional currency. The currency giving rise to this risk to the
Group is primarily Canadian dollars. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group may invest its surplus funds or funds not designated for
specific purpose or funds designated for specific purpose but
application of which is not immediately required (collectively “the
Group’s Funds”) in the form of short term (i.e. less than one year)
and liquid stocks through investing the Group’s Funds in diversified
portfolio of investments products including listed or unlisted
securities, unit trust funds, or such other investments as the Board
of the Company, or such committees or person as the Board may
authorize, may decide from time to time so as to preserve the value
of the Group’s Funds and/or achieve capital appreciation.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
meets the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss any
areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company interim and annual reports.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no purchases,
sales or redemption of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group had complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March
2014, except that the independent non-executive directors are not
appointed for specific terms but are still subject to re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. On 1 April 2014, each
of them has been appointed for a term of one year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the
Company, all directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2014.

By Order of the Board
Chu Yuet Wah
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital
to the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group.
We commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the business of the Group.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance (the “Principles”) and two
levels of corporate governance practices:

(a) code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) which listed issuers
are expected to comply with or to give considered reasons
for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) for guidance only, which listed issuers are
encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions. It also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making. The Board
currently comprises 6 members, consisting of 3 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)*
Mr. Ho Chi Ho (appointed on 2 January 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors also represented at least one third of the members of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

* Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

The term of office for each of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is the period up to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

All Non-executive Directors are appointed for an initial term of not
more than 1 year.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting (*“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

In August 2013, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee, the Board has approved and adopted the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in light of the
amendments of the CG Code, and the same are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board also
approved the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Training for Directors

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be
provided an induction so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary. During the year, the Company has organised one
training session to all Directors conducted by qualified
professionals on “Connected Transactions” in March 2014.
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, Mr. Ho Chi Ho,
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, Mr. Lau Man Tak and Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan
attended that session. All Directors have provided records of the
training they received to the Company.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance and performed the duties under the terms of reference
in code provision D.3.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, 10 Board meetings and 2
general meeting were held. The individual attendance record of
each Director at the Board meeting and general meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:
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Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui N (i 10/10 2/2

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL 10/10 2/2
Mr. Ho Chi Ho L

(appointed on 2 January 2014) (R=ZZE—NF—A-HEZT) 3/3 1/1

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen = ST 10/10 2/2

Mr. Lau Man Tak B fEAE 10/10 2/2

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACEE 10/10 2/2
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Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meetings.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3
days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the
Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their
duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah respectively.
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Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. She is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the company practices and procedures, business
objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All the members of the three Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board.
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(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any)
applicable to the Directors and employees; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2014. During the year under review, work performed by the
Audit Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results
and the unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the
compliance and internal audit reports and the compliance and
corporate governance issues of the Group; and (iii) discussing with
external auditor the audit planning work (including the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations) in respect of the audit
of the annual results of the Group.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of

external auditors.

The Company’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2014
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the Audit
Committee meeting during the year ended 31 March 2014 is set
out below:

BE_FT-NWFE=A=+—BLEFE  FEFRK
BERZEeeRZEALFELEFINMT

Attendance

at Audit

Committee

Name of Audit Committee Members meetings
i

BEREES

ERESERENE 2ER™
Mr. Lau Man Tak B fELE 3/3
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =EEET 3/3
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RipLCEE 3/3

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee has
assessed the performance of executive directors and reviewed the
terms of service contract of Directors.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included (i) assessing performance of
Executive Director and senior management and, where applicable,
approving their terms of services including the Directors’ fees and
the emoluments of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and
determining on policy and structure of the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2014 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under
review are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2014 and reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record is
as follows:

FHNEEeRBE_T—HWF=A=1T—HILF
FAEE—/A Ifﬁﬂzﬁﬁjfﬁﬁ fr BN ECSR B 2R
BUAREENSREBABZHMeES - HFES
AEACERELSIANT

Attendance at
Remuneration

Committee

Name of Remuneration Committee Members meetings
H

FHEES

FMESEREHE 2ERH
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACESE 1/1
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =S 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Tak B rE A 1/1

The remuneration of the members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out as below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FNAm &)

BE_ZT-NF=A=T—HBILFE  ZFHHME
MBSz BREREREFHHETINT :

Nil to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 3,000,000
3,000,001 to 4,000,000
4,000,001 to 5,000,000
5,000,001 to 6,000,000
6,000,001 to 7,000,000

Number of

person

AE”

Z£ £ 1,000,000 2
1,000,001 £ 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 2 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 £ 4,000,000 0
4,000,001 £ 5,000,000 0
5,000,001 £ 6,000,000 0
6,000,001 £ 7,000,000 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy for the consideration of the Board and to
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy. During the
nomination process, the nomination committee will consider the
competency, independency (in case of independent non-executive
director), conflict of interests, capacity, management experience of
a candidate which makes him/herself suitable for the role as a
director and make recommendation to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the

appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s structure, size
and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board exist,
the Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and (iii) adopting of a policy concerning diversity
of board members in accordance with the new Code Provision
A.5.6 in the revised CG Code which came into effect on 1
September 2013. Nomination procedures and the process and
criteria will be determined by the Nomination Committee should
there be the need to select and recommend candidates for
directorship.

Details of the duties and powers of the Nomination Committee are
set out in its written terms of reference which has been revised
during the year under review in line with the amendment of the CG
Code on board diversity and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the yearended EHZ_-_Z—NF=A=+—"HILFE EELZE
31 March 2014. The attendance record is as follows: BRITZREH  HEGBZLHHINAT

Attendance at

Nomination

Committee

Name of Nomination Committee Members meetings

HE

REZE®

REZESGNERE BERE

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =EEET 3/3

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACESE 3/3

Mr. Lau Man Tak Bz fEkAE 3/3
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by the employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014,

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to 56.

The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$2,126,000 and
HK$205,000 respectively.
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An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company is set out below:

BN/ AR RSN E 2 ST

Amount of

Fees Payable/

Types of Services Paid

et

BRAE2E A BRSHE

(HK$)

(&)

Audit Services EiZR% 2,126,000
Non-audit Services IEEZARTE

1. Tax services 1. FIBRF 107,000

2. Others 2. Hip 98,000

205,000

Total A&t 2,331,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Management currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and an independent accounting firm, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is satisfied that the internal control systems within
the Group are effective.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Yick Fung resigned as company secretary of the Company
with effect from 4 April 2014. On the same date, Mr. Chan Chun
Lam was appointed as company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Lai Yick Fung was the company secretary of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2014. Mr. Lai Yick Fung has confirmed
that there is no disagreement with the Board and that there is no
other matter in relation to his resignation that needs to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. Up to the date
of this report, both of Mr. Chan Chun Lam and Mr. Lai Yick Fung
have undertaken sufficient hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a
special general meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings,
any Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
of the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Bermuda
Companies Act.

Proceedings at general meetings

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kingston.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.
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The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 57 to 58. The Board
recommended the payment of final dividend of HK1.5 cent per
share for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK1.0 cent). No
interim dividend was declared during the six months ended 30
September 2013 (six months ended 30 September 2012: Nil).

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2014 is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 62 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
March 2014 are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2014 amounted to approximately HK$1,436,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as
below:

L FEHEHRE
AEEBERAMREL Y LEUREERE &
BE DESECERRERE  UOEEE
FAME - HIWMT -

2014 2013 2012 2010 2009
—E-mE —T—=F —Z-—-F —FT-FF ZZTTHhF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FETT FET FHT FAT
(restated)
(E71)
Turnover EET 1,847,685 1,377,988 1,573,971 541,247 413,739
Profit before taxation B R E A 900,955 614,242 639,903 100,904 231,687
Profit attributable to owners wE AEERN 771,060 537,884 548,988 99,558 229,915
Total assets BESE 25,873,931 21,651,262 19,518,211 3,875,279 3,252,731
Total liabilities BERTE (9,984,042)  (6,824,247)  (5,374,857) (55,526) (44,815)
Non-controlling interest JEFE AR SS (8,098) (13,438) (11,289) (3,886) (2,540)
Shareholders’ fund BEEe 15,881,791 14,813,577 14,132,065 3,815,867 3,205,376
Notes: Bz -

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company first adopted
amendments to HKAS 17 made under “Improvements to HKFRSs
2009”. The comparative figures for 2009 were restated to conform
with current year presentation.

(2) 2012 figures represent period for fifteen months ended 31 March
2012.

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share options and share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in notes 39 and notes 41
to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004 (“2004
Scheme”) expired on 6 June 2014. At the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 20 August 2013, shareholders of the
Company have approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). Details of the New
Share Option Scheme were set out in the Company’s circular
dated 19 July 2013.
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The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to participants. To determine the eligibility of the participant, the
Board may offer to grant an option to any participant who has
contribution to the Group.

Options granted under the New Share Option Scheme are subject
to such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and specified in the offer of an option,
which terms and conditions may include: (A) vesting conditions
which must be satisfied before an option-holder’s option shall
become vested and capable of being exercised; and (B) the
Board may, in its absolute discretion, specify performance
conditions that must be achieved before an option can be
exercised and/or the minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

The option price will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and notified to an option-holder. The minimum option
price shall not be less than the highest of: (A) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; (B) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (C)
the nominal value of the shares.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and
any options to be granted under any other scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue as
at the adoption date. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the New Share Option Scheme and any other scheme will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.

With the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting, the
Board may “refresh” the 10% limit provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme under the limit as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date on which the Shareholders approve
the “refreshed” limit. Options previously granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and option granted under any other
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant scheme, or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as “refreshed”.

The Board may, with the approval of the Shareholders, grant
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular to the
Shareholders containing a generic description of the specified
participants who may be granted such options, the number and
terms of such options to be granted and the purpose of granting
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such options to the specified participants with an explanation of
how the terms of the options will serve the purpose. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under any other scheme shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme and no options may
be granted under any other schemes if this will result in the limit
being exceeded.

The Board shall not grant any options to any participant which, if
exercised, would result in such participant becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated with
the total number of shares already issued or to be issued to him
under all options granted to him (including those options exercised
or outstanding) in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at such date.

The Board may grant options to any participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period with the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting (with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting). In such situation, the Company
will send a circular to the Shareholders and the circular must
disclose the identity of the participant, the number and terms of the
options to be granted (and previously granted to such participant).

An option under the New Share Option Scheme which is vested
and has not lapsed may be exercised at any time during such
period notified by the Board as not exceeding 10 years from the
offer date. The exercise of options may also be subject to any
conditions imposed by the Board at the time of offer.

No share option under the New Share Option Scheme has been
granted during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Details of the 2004 Scheme are set out in note 39 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on prorate basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company'’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March

2014 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Chi Ho (appointed on 2 January 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1), Mr. Chu Nicholas Yuk-yui
and Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with the bye-law 86(2), Mr. Ho Chi Ho will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, Mr.
Lau Man Tak and Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company still considers the independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, aged 61, holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in Accounting and a Master of Business Administration from the
Louisiana State University. He has extensive experience in
commercial property leasing and management and corporate
finance, foreign exchange, lending, securities and futures trading
industries. He is a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute and a
responsible officer under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for
type 1 (dealing in securities) and 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
activities. He is also the spouse of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and he
joined the Group in February 2006.
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Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, aged 55, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is the co-founder of
Kingston group of companies, she has over 20 years of experience
in financial services industry. Mrs. Chu has also been appointed as
the Chairman of The Institute of Securities Dealers and Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association.
Moreover, she is the Member of National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice Chairman of Hong
Kong Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (Provincial) Member Association Foundation, Vice
Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Vice
Chairman of Po Leung Kuk, Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations, President of The Tung
Koon District General Association, Chairman of Aplichau Promotion
of Tourism Association, School Manager of Aplichau KaiFong
Primary School, Chairman of The Aplichau KaiFong Welfare
Association, Honorary President of Hong Kong Federation of
Women and Honorary Vice President of Hong Kong Girl Guides
Association. She received an Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy in
Business Management degree from York University, the U.S.A. and
holds a Bachelor of Science in Management degree from Golden
Gate University, the U.S.A.. Mrs. Chu is currently the chairman and
executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited which is
a company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. She is
also the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui and she joined the
Group in April 2005.

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Chi Ho, aged 39, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ho is responsible for origination and execution of corporate
finance transactions including mergers and acquisitions, corporate
and capital restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity
and debt fund raising. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in banking
and capital markets, and also held senior position in corporate
management in a Hong Kong listed company. Mr. Ho holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a bachelor degree in
accounting and finance from The University of Hong Kong. He is
registered as a Responsible Officer under Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Ho had worked with the
Group from 2003 to 2007 and rejoined in August 2011. He was
appointed as Executive Director on 2 January 2014.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, aged 56, received a Ph.D. Degree from
Harvard University, and was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. He has worked
in financial industries in the United States and Hong Kong for many
years, and has considerable experience in Corporate Finance,
Investment and Derivative Products. He is a member of Hong
Kong Securities Institute. Dr. Wong is an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited, and an independent non-executive director of
Bauhaus International (Holdings) Limited, China Sandi Holdings
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Limited (formerly known as China Grand Forestry Green Resources
Group Limited), Climax International Company Limited, Harmony
Asset Limited, Guocang Group Limited (formerly known as Hua Yi
Copper Holdings Limited), Kaisun Energy Group Limited, Kong
Sun Holdings Limited, China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group Company
Limited, New Island Development Holdings Limited and Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited. Dr. Wong was independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies
Group Limited (formerly known as ZMay Holdings Limited) from
November 2009 to September 2012. He joined the Group in June
2005.

Mr. Lau Man Tak, aged 44, holds a Bachelor Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
more than 16 years of experience in corporate finance, accounting
and auditing. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He is currently an executive director, the chairman,
compliance officer and substantial shareholder of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited, which is a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, an independent non-
executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited, Climax
International Company Limited and AMCO United Holdings
Limited, which are companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited from September 2008 to
April 2014 and an executive director of China Grand Forestry
Green Resources Group Limited (presently known as China Sandi
Holdings Limited) from April 2010 to September 2012, which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan, aged 63, has extensive experience in real
estate and financial services industries. Mr. Yu has a Bachelor
Degree in Management from Youngstown State University in Ohio,
USA and a Master of Science Degree in Financial Services from
American College in Pennsyvania, USA. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was the
first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San Francisco
Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union Real Estate
Company in the United States from 1980-1995 and held senior
positions in MetlLife and New York Life Insurance Company in
managing Asian customers in North America. Mr. Yu is also an
executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of Noble Century Investment
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sam Woo Holdings Limited)
and China Sandi Holdings Limited. He joined the Group in
September 2008.
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Senior Management

Mr. Lui Jammy, aged 45, is the Chief Operating Officer —
Financial Services, of the Group. Mr. Lui is responsible for
overseeing the operations of the Group. Mr. Lui has over 14 years
of experience in securities and capital markets, and has extensive
experience in auditing, financing, accounting and operations. He
is a director of The Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and The
Hong Kong Association of Online Brokers Limited. Mr. Lui
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy. He also holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the University of
Manchester and a Bachelor’'s Degree in Laws from University of
London. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Associate of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Lui joined the
Group in December 2010.

Mr. Lai Yick Fung, aged 43, is the Financial Controller of the
Group and Secretary of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor of
Arts Degree in accountancy in Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Lai is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrations and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai
had worked for an international accounting firm and a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong and the United States as senior
management and has years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in August
2008 and resigned on 4 April 2014.

Mr. Chan Chun Lam, aged 42, joined the Group on 4 April 2014
and is currently the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has worked for an
International accounting firm and a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has 20 years of professional experience in
financial management and auditing.

Ms. Chan Yin Tong Cynthia, aged 63, is a director of Kingston
Securities Limited. Ms. Chan is responsible for promotion, sales
and marketing, recruitment and training of sales representative of
Kingston Securities. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
securities broking, compliance, administrative functions, activities
in underwriting new issues, equity capital markets and project
financing. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Dealing Director
and Responsible Officer of Wintech Securities Limited and Koffman
Securities Limited principally responsible for securities broking,
compliance and administrative functions. In addition, Ms. Chan
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also undertook activities in underwriting new issues, equity capital
markets and project financing. Ms. Chan has been working in
international securities firms and investment banks in the 1980’s.
Ms. Chan worked in Merrill Lynch (FE) Limited in 1989 and
Standard Chartered Securities Limited in 1993 and was also the
Assistant Vice President of Prudential Bache Securities Hong Kong
Limited in 1997. She is very experienced with the operations of the
Hong Kong securities market. Ms. Chan is a registered
Responsible Officer under Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Ms. Chan joined the Group in February 2006.

Mr. Wong Hip Keung Jimmy, aged 54, is the Director-Retail and
Corporate Sales of Kingston Securities Limited. Mr Wong is
responsible for overseeing the dealing department which includes
both securities and futures products. He has a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the Golden Gate University in San Francisco, CA,
USA. With extensive experience in securities and capital markets,
he is specialized in securities & futures broking, compliance and
administrative functions. He is registered as a responsible officer
under Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities. He joined the Group in October
1996.

Mr. Keung Kelvin, aged 40, is the director of Kingston Asset
Management. Mr. Keung is responsible for supervising the
operation of the Group’s asset management department and
making investment decisions on behalf of clients. Mr. Keung
graduated from the Macquarie University, Australia, with a
Bachelor Degree of Commerce. Mr. Keung possesses extensive
experience in the financial industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Keung was the director and Responsible Officer of the asset
management department of Emperor Capital Limited. Mr. Keung
was the dealing director of Fortune (HK) Securities Limited
(formerly known as Hong Tong Hai Securities Limited) and was
licensed as a Responsible Officer to carry on Type 9 (asset
management) and Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Mr. Keung is licensed as a Responsible Officer of
Kingston Asset Management under Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activity. Mr. Keung joined the Group in December 2006.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years which commenced on 1 April
2014, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than 6 months’ written notice.

All the independent non-executive directors are appointed for an
initial term of not more than 1 year.
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None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2014 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2014.

OTHER MATTERS

Details of events after the reporting date are set out in note 51 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SECURITIES

At 31 March 2014, the following Directors had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required (a) to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies:
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Notes:

(1)  As at 31 March 2014, of the 7,063,803,895 shares, 1,894,699,896
shares are held by Sure Expert Limited, 15,939,999 shares are held
by Kingston Capital Limited and 5,153,164,000 shares are held by
Active Dynamic Limited, all of which are controlled by Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah (“Mrs. Chu”). Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (“Mr. Chu”), the spouse
of Mrs. Chu, is deemed to be interested in these 7,063,803,895
shares.

(2)  As at 31 March 2014, Mrs. Chu, through Active Dynamic Limited
held 5,250,000,000 convertible preference shares conferring rights
to subscribe for up to HK$4,200,000,000 in aggregate in cash for
5,250,000,000 new shares at the conversion price of HK$0.80
(subject to adjustments) per share. Mr. Chu is deemed to be
interested in the 5,250,000,000 underlying shares held by Mrs. Chu.

Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO
by any Director of the Chief Executive of the Company or their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in securities”, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2014 was the Company or any of its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors or Chief Executives, nor any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during
the year.
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Report of the Directors
EERWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company:

Number of shares

FERR
R-Z-—ME=ZA=+—8  RADARBEES
RHEGHIE 36 EREFE 2 EERR B DM

ERTRATHREABEERLRER

of the Company No. of
EATRRBEE underlying Approximate
Personal Corporate  shares of the percentage of
Name of Shareholders Interests Interests Company Total shareholding
RRTFEE B4
BRREE, HE BARERE DNEERE ROEE mE REBDL
Sure Expert Limited - 1,894,699,896 - 1,894,699,896 15.64%
(Note 1)(Ht 1)
Active Dynamic Limited - 5,153,164,000 5,250,000,000 10,403,164,000 85.87%
(Note 2)(fffzx2)
Better Sino Limited (Note 3) - 1,125,000,000 - 1,125,000,000 9.29%
TEBRAR(HE3)
Mr. Lee Wai Man (Note 3) 18,852,000  1,530,750,000 - 1,549,602,000 12.79%
FEXSLE (ME3) (Note 4)
(it 4)
Notes: Bz

(1) Sure Expert Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs. Chu.
The interests of Mrs. Chu and Sure Expert Limited in the Company
are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

(2)  Active Dynamic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs.
Chu. The interests of Mrs. Chu and Active Dynamic Limited in the
Company are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

(8)  Better Sino Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lee Wai
Man (“Mr. Lee”), the father of Mrs. Chu.

(4) As at 31 March 2014, of the 1,5630,750,000 shares, 405,750,000
shares are held by Choose Right Limited. 1,125,000,000 shares are
held by Better Sino Limited. Both companies are wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lee.

Save for those disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2014.

(1) Sure Expert Limited HE X 1+ 2 EEm#H - F
%4 J Sure Expert Limited K 2 5] 2 #E 25 # 10
FEXTEBRBRITERAEBRES ZEBSRAE]

—&f e

(2)  Active Dynamic Limited HE L+ 2 EE=HAE °
ZF 4+ ] Active Dynamic Limited 7R 2N &2 B2
HREX[EFRERITHABRESZ Bk

KB —H -

(8) BEEFARRAHFLTZRBFEXSEL([FSE
)2 EEmHR -

(4) R-F—mE=A=1+—H  11,530,750,000 5%
A% 17 # - 405,750,000% % 17 H Choose Right
Limited#5 7% - i 1,125,000,000 i% B% 17 Al B3 1£ &

BRRAIGE - MR A AGHFLELER R
Ao
B EXPREEN  R-_B-—FE=A=1+—8"

ARRBARENEARF D HTRAP ZEAE
B BERIORE -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1.

50

Continuing Connected Transactions —
Provision of Financial Services

On 13 August 2013, Sincere Watch and Kingston entered
into the Master Agreement which provides the framework
within which the SW Group may engage the Kingston Group
to provide Services to the SW Group from time to time for a
fixed term commencing on the date of the Master Agreement
up to 31 March 2016.

Mrs. Chu is a controlling shareholder and executive director
of both Sincere Watch and Kingston. Therefore, Sincere
Watch and Kingston are regarded as connected person to
each other under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement,
which were entered into between Sincere Watch and
Kingston constitute continuing connected transactions on the
part of each of Sincere Watch and Kingston under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Master Agreement

Master Agreement
Date: 13 August 2013
Parties: (i)  Sincere Watch
(i) Kingston
Duration: commencing from the date of the Master

Agreement up to 31 March 2016 (both

days inclusive).
Subject matter:  provision of financial services by the
Kingston Group to the SW Group,
including but not limited to, placement,
underwriting or sub-underwriting of
securities, brokerage, financial advisory
services, asset management, general
consultancy and other ancillary services.

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014

3 SERIES-
ARk LR AR U 82 SIS BB B R R 238 ©

Eﬁﬁ"%

RERERS — RHUSERE

RZ-ZE—=F 7\ A+=8 " Sincere Watch
e FEET B IRHEZRNHSWE
BETRNZESFEEEmSWEBRHRY -
BEFHEep i iEtEE—T—RF=
A=+—H8H-

Z= 47 + B 5k Sincere Watch K& FI| £ > $#2 %
BREHFTEE - AL BIELEWHRAE
Sincere Watch & & FI| 2 7 A ¥ 75 2 B8
AT B BREFE TR EUAE
Sincere WatchEﬁi FIEMEIAEET
T 2R 59 R Sincere Watch & &
%'J.%Z%%E@@%ﬁ@?&% °

HinE

A%

HER - —E2—=FNA+=H

514977+ ()  Sincere Watch
(iy =H2

HARR - BmZEHPEEE T — X
FZA=Z1+—"H(BEEREMW
K)o

TEEHE: eMNEKERSWEEIREHRS
BRY - BREETRREE -
BHI D BHES &M
BEERS BEEE  — R
A M EA AL ERTS -



Report of the Directors

E=R%E

Annual Caps:

the parties agree that the Services will be
subject to the following annual caps:

the aggregate amounts payable by the
SW Group to the Kingston Group for the
transactions for the period from the date
of the Master Agreement up to 31 March
2014 and for each of the two financial
years ending 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2016 shall not exceed the
following:

FELER : FINETRERBZRRIAT
FEER :

REwmEEHEEE TN

F=A=t+—HI-HREUARE

E_T-AF=A=+—HBK

“E-RF=A=1+—HBItW

A BEFEEEF  SWEEHRR
FRN SN EEE 2 FIAREE

NMEEBEATEA ¢

For the period
from the date of

the Master
Agreement up to
31 March 2014

For the year
ending
31 March 2015

For the year
ending
31 March 2016

B S
AHEEZE BZ BZE
—E-NF —E-AHF —E-RF
=BA=+—H =B=+—H =H=+—H
LEHARS EEE LEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Services (including placement, R (BIERE - Bk
underwriting or DEEES - K4
subunderwriting of securities, B TS R R AR TS
brokerage, financial advisory BEERE  —REAR
services, asset management, HibAERE)
general consultancy and
other ancillary services) 18,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
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Terms:

on normal commercial terms and at rates
no less favorable from Independent Third
Parties in respect of the Services that are
similar in terms of scale, complexity and
nature to the relevant Services to be
provided by the Kingston Group to the SW
Group. Detailed payment terms will be
specified in individual contracts governing
particular transactions.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated

13 August 2013.

DEFINITIONS

52

“Kingston”

“Kingston Group”

“Sincere Watch”

“SW Group”

“Services”

“Master
Agreement”

Kingston Financial Group Limited

Kingston and its subsidiaries

Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited

Sincere Watch and its subsidiaries

provision of financial services by the
Kingston Group to the SW Group,
including but not limit to placement,
underwriting or sub-underwriting of
securities, brokerage, financial advisory
services, asset management, general
consultancy and other ancillary services

the agreement dated 13 August 2013
entered into between Sincere Watch and
Kingston in relation to the provision of
Services for the SW Group by the
Kingston Group

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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Renewal of Continuing Connected Transactions
The terms of the brokerage services agreement entered
between Kingston Securities Limited, Kingston Futures
Limited and the Chu & Li’s Family dated 21 February 2011
regarding the provision of brokerage services and each of
the financial services agreements entered between Kingston
Securities Limited and the Previous Relevant Director(s)
dated 21 February 2011 regarding the provision of financial
services expired on 31 March 2014. In order for the Group to
continue to provide brokerage and financial services to the
relevant Directors and their respective associates (where
applicable), on 3 January 2014, (i) Kingston Securities
Limited and Kingston Futures Limited have entered into the
2014 Brokerage Services Agreement with the Chu & Li's
Family for provision of brokerage services and (ii) Kingston
Securities Limited has entered into the 2014 Chu & Li’s
Family Financial Services Agreement with the Chu & Li’s
Family and the 2014 Financial Services Agreement with Mr.
Ho for provision of financial services for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
3 January 2014 and circular dated 28 February 2014.

Details of the connected transactions entered into by the
Company during the year are set out in note 48 to the
financial statements.

EERERERS
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MARMFRRERIRELLRBAEILA
HA—ZE——F-_A -t BZ2RERBER
EULSNEBLFERATHEBTIHEEES
MRS RRGHAI VAR T ——F — A
Tt+—HZEHheRERBHBE s FHEN D
T—NF=ZA=+—HEm - BEREEE
BERAEBEERFESECBEA T (E
AIREL&ERSRRY R —NF—
A=B ()&FMEBHERL[ RS FLH
BEHERARELREFRREFRELLR
BRI T —UF &L RS B ki)
FILFEHERARERKRFRRERIZMH
SRRGIIL T NFERARETERES
BRI AR B AR L T —UF S
BRI BT —UFUA—RREE"
T—t+HF=—A=F+—HIAH=F-

AEEBERARRBH AT —NE—A
—HZRERHBAZZT—NFE-_A =+
B2k o

RARRFREETEER S 2 BEHNET
SRR I TE 48 ©

SHESHMEBMERAT — T FFR 53



Report of the Directors
EERWE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Messrs Graham H.Y. Chan & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
resigned and BDO Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2012.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2014 have been audited by BDO Limited, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
AR A GE

|IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEER1115E
TKEHID2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 57 to 179, which comprise
the consolidated and company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

HEFNEERMEBERLF
(REFZEEIMALZBRAA)
IR AR

AzBMEERENEEREBERAR(TER
A REKBRR] (FiE [ E5E]) K57 =179
BZEARBHRE EREERN _F—NF=A
=t HZEARARMBIRE - URBEZ
BLtFEZFARGEREMEEBEER HFAtE
HEPHRNMGARERERETIZSARRME
REMBHER

EERNGAMBHRR2EMR

BERREFARERBEFTEGHMARRMLE
BUBREENRBERIEI 2 HERE -
HEBRRFZHGEEUBERE  LEEEERR
WHBZRNEESH - AERES M BBRRTFER
RARFF R EE AR M G B EASHRRERL -

BB A2 B

B EERRBRMZESL  REZFRE
MBHRERBR  URBBERZEQBEEI0KE
HEERBRR(ERER)®E - Rt 25 AR
ETAAEEMAE - ARBENHARARENR
BRAEMEMA LB T SRETMEE -

AZBECIZRE LG AGRM 2 EEER
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AR A Ry

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

reEBm kA EEmEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE_ZT-—MF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—2-NF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaE FHET FHET
Revenue Wz 7 1,847,685 1,377,988
Other income H A 8 71,980 15,727
1,919,665 1,393,715

Inventory consumed FrEAFEE (22,175) (22,697)
Staff costs B IR 9 (190,209) (169,226)
Gaming commission B (163,685) (170,827)
Broker commission & me (37,767) (30,068)
Interest expenses for securities brokerage and A& 40 RIRE S B E 275

margin financing operations ZH B (69,957) (43,093)
Depreciation e (121,049) (109,103)
Impairment loss on advances to customers MEFBNRESHE

in margin financing, trade and other LA B 5 K ELAth i U AR 3K

receivables ZBIEEE (5,302) (874)
Administrative expenses TR (106,592) (122,688)
Other operating expenses Hip & 25 (164,675) (64,334)

(881,411) (732,910)

Finance income BhE U A 4,932 5,427
Finance cost B R AN 10 (58,800) (56,552)
Loss from sales of trading securities HERXSESZEIE (675) (195)
Fair value loss on trading securities RHFEH 2 A FEERE (2,425) (759)
Exchange loss bE H &8 (4,328) (4,781)
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land ME T RIEFZEHAE

and buildings - 10,732
Share of results of joint ventures PMEEEDEEE 22 (1,262) (435)
Impairment loss on intangible assets FELERFEE

held for sale BB EE 31 (74,741) -

(137,299) (46,563)

Profit before taxation 5 A5 A v A 12 900,955 614,242
Taxation FLIE 11 (125,235) (74,209)
Profit for the year FRER 775,720 540,033
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/\I:I\/

“RE Hi e E B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE_Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

\/

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
izt THET FHET
Profit for the year FRE 775,720 540,033
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 EA 16
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit BreEHMoE
or loss: ZEm AR
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land et RiEFZ
and buildings BHE% 484,720 304,229
Item that may be reclassified subsequently Higr[geEH A
to profit or loss: EiEmIAR
Unrealised (loss)/gain arising from AHEEREANTEE
change in fair value of available-for-sale EEZKER (BER),/
investments Was (517) 323
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations b H ZRE (23,404) -
Other comprehensive gain for the FREAMEERE
year, net of tax HBRFRIE 460,799 304,552
Total comprehensive income FAZEBAEE
for the year 1,236,519 844,585
Profit for the year attributable to: iR EREF
Owners of the Company PIN/NETEZ S DN 771,060 537,884
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A = 4,660 2,149
775,720 540,033
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE{5 2 UL A &A% :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ DN 1,231,859 842,436
Non-controlling interests eI T 4,660 2,149
1,236,519 844,585
Earnings per share (cents per share) FREF (ZRA) 15
— Basic — HAR 4.44 3.10
— Diluted — &8 4.44 3.10
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR
As at 31 March 2014
R-F—EF=A=+—A

31.3.2014 &)1, 85,2018
—E—-mE =E =
SEEr e =R S
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt TExT TFET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE MR 19 3,303,334 2,847,791
Deferred tax assets RIETHIB & = 40 6,107 6,107
Deposit for hotel renovation BERFT 2 F] & - 1,128
Statutory deposit for financial CRRBER EEL S
services business 7,484 4,452
Goodwill [EEES 20 10,996,683 10,996,683
Interests in joint ventures RELBDE R 22 24 1,281
14,313,632 13,857,442
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ER 23 2,996 2,942
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 24 1,387 4,895
Trading securities RSB 5 25 48,692 50,121
Loan receivable e E TR 26 - 406,827
Advances to customers in margin financing AR AR BLEE 27 9,133,772 6,279,044
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A U BR R 28 188,513 129,593
Tax recoverable A Ug [B] 5 18 - 990
Cash and bank balances NG LIRIT4E
— held on behalf of customers — REFPHEE 29 1,651,393 731,306
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHER
— general accounts — —RERP 30 210,861 188,102
11,237,614 7,793,820
Intangible assets held for sale RIEHEREEE 31 322,685 -
11,560,299 7,793,820
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEMIRR 32 1,863,074 872,082
Amounts due to shareholders FE S IR BR FR 1B 33 2,847,111 1,661,111
Loan from a related company RKE—KBERARER 34 2,952,639 2,289,821
Subordinated loans BEER 35 700,000 700,000
Promissory notes QTS 37 - 961,200
Bank loans RITER 36 1,324,000 150,000
Tax payable FEI IR 76,712 31,363
9,763,536 6,665,577
Net current assets REEEFE 1,796,763 1,128,243
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE 16,110,395 14,985,685
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“re ISR

As at 31 March 2014
RZZE—MF=A=+—H

31.3.2014 815832008
—E—E =a==4E
EASTr=E Z[H=T—E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HteE FET TFET
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEB & 40 220,506 158,670
Total Non-current liabilities e A=kt k] 220,506 158,670
Total liabilities =Lt t-C 9,984,042 6,824,247
Net assets EERE 15,889,889 14,827,015
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital — ordinary shares AR AR — @Ak 41 242,290 242,290
Share capital — non-redeemable f&AR — A fE
convertible preference shares GRS 41 105,000 105,000
Reserves HiE 42 15,534,501 14,466,287
Total equity attributable to owners of BATEEAELERBE
the Company 15,881,791 14,813,577
Non-controlling interests IR ES 8,098 13,438
Total equity AR 15,889,889 14,827,015
On behalf of the Board REEZER
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui Chu Yuet Wah
KRB FHE
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

B IS AR 2=
As at 31 March 2014
R-F-—MFE=A=+—H

31.3.2014 &)1, 85,2018
—E-mF —T—=F
SEEr e =R S
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MteE TExT TFET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ R MRS 19 3,368 3,607
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIHE 21 14,339,424 13,869,809
14,342,792 13,873,316
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayment e RIERKIE 28 7,810 7,706
Amount due from a subsidiary B —RH B AT RIE 21 399,168 406,836
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHRR
— general accounts — —RERF 30 35,914 21,673
442,892 436,215
Current liabilities REEE
Other payable and accruals Hith e AR fEET & A 32 2,562 13,068
Amounts due to shareholders JEAS IR FRIE 33 2,410,000 900,000
Promissory notes L R 37 - 961,200
2,412,562 1,874,268
Net current liabilities REBAEFEE (1,969,670) (1,438,053)
Net assets EERE 12,373,122 12,435,263
Capital and reserves ERXR #E
Share capital — ordinary shares AR — EH@Ak 41 242,290 242 290
Share capital — non-redeemable f&AR — A fE
convertible preference shares A B S A% 41 105,000 105,000
Reserves HE 42 12,025,832 12,087,973
Total equity Em AR 12,373,122 12,435,263
On behalf of the Board REREFH
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui Chu Yuet Wah
KRB ZHE
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE_ZT-—MFE=A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KATREAEGER
Share
capital —
non-
Share redeemable Share-
capital —  convertible Share Capital Property based Investment  Exchange Non-
ordinary preference  premium redemption Contributed revaluation  payment revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
shares shares  account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity
RA—
FAEE NBBA
Bx— TER Kt  EFRE wE  EEXM  REER  EXE®
BER BER RER G ABRY  EfRE 1] 1] #E  REERA & FERER  BRAE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
FhL FhL T Fh T T T Tk T L FhL FhL T
At1 April 2012 R-B--%
mA-B 240,865 105,000 11,712,945 466 814 882782 36,759 2,265 235 1149934 14,132,065 1,289 14,143,354
Profit for the year FRETH - - = = = = = = = 537,884 537,884 2,149 540,033
Other comprehensive income  FREM2ERA
for the year - - - - - 304,229 - 33 - - 304,552 - 304,552
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE
for the year - - - - - 30429 - 323 - 537,884 842,436 2,149 844,585
Realised upon depreciation RIBREFER
based on revalued amount SEITERER
of land and building = = = = = (23,429) = = = 23429 = = =
Issue of shares under REBRETE
share option scheme BRA 1425 - 27,035 - - - (6,233) - - - 221 - 2201
Share-based payments IR BER S - - - - - - 494 - - - 494 - 494
Forfeiture of share options R ERE = = = = = = (31,020) = = 31,020 = = =
Payment of dividends EARE - - - - - - - - - (173645)  (173,645) - (173645)
Payment of dividend to R R
non-controlling interest RS - - - - - - - - - (10,000) (10,000) - (10,000)
At 31 March 2013
242,290 105000 11,739,980 466 814 1,163,582 - 2,588 235 1558622 14813577 13438 14,827,015
At1 April 2013 W-%-=Z%
mA-B 242,290 105,000 11,739,980 466 814 1,163,582 - 2,588 235 1558622 14,813,577 13438 14,827,015
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - - - 771,060 711,060 4,660 775,720
Other comprehensive income  EREM2ERA
for the year - - - - - 484720 - (6517)  (23,404) - 460,799 - 460,799
Total comprehensive income FREERAER
for the year - - - - - 484720 - (517)  (23,404) 771,060 1,231,859 4660 1,236,519
Realised upon depreciation R RETER
based on revalued amount SEIMTERER
of land and building - - - - - (31,256) - - - 31,256 - - -
Payment of dividends EAARE - - - - - - - - - (173,0645)  (173,645) - (173,645)
Payment of dividend to ez
non-controlling interest EARE - - - - - N - - - 10,000 10,000 (10,000) -
At 31 March 2014
242,290 105,000 11,739,980 466 814 1,617,046 - 2,01 (23,169) 2,197,203 15,881,791 8,098 15,889,889
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN = AN = —
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NNF=-A=-1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER T
Cash flows from operating activities REEXEBABRERE
Profit before income tax expense B 1575 7 2 AT 7 900,955 614,242
Adjustments for: BT SIBIEL AR
Share of loss of joint ventures DlEEETEEE 1,262 435
Finance cost R E AR 58,800 56,552
Finance income BhE U A (4,932) (5,427)
Dividend income & B U A (2,299) (2,712)
Loss on disposal investment at fair value BEAFEHEREZEE 675 195
Depreciation e 121,049 109,103
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets HERBREEREZ (W), /EiE (310) 503
Write off of property, plant and equipment ME - R MR - 11,856
Impairment losses on advances to MEFANRESHENAR
customers in margin financing, trade B 5 R E A REUER K
and other receivables Z R EETE 5,302 874
Reversal of impairment losses on advances BOREFPANRICHE
to customers in margin financing, trade VAT B 5 R ELAth i U AR 3R
and other receivables ZRIEEE (16,085) (1,359)
Bad debts recovery dEp=a: (14,807) -
Unrealised exchange loss REIRE 1R 7,719 7,993
Unrealised losses on trading securities R G #EH AR A 2,425 759
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land HE L RIEFEGHRBR
and buildings - (10,732)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses Rz 2 W A IR (D A&
Xtz - 494
Impairment loss on intangible assets FEHEEFEERERRE
held for sale 74,741 -
Gain on lapse of derivative financial liabilities PTHE SR A BRI Was (21,722) -
Operating profit before working capital changes & & & & 85l 2 & 2 @ Al 1,112,773 782,776
Proceeds from sale of trading securities KEHERSGELEMERIE 1,006 290
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (Em), (54) 424
Increase in trading securities R G EHIE NN (2,677) -
Increase in statutory deposit for SREB EERSIE N
financial business (3,032) (1,679)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N Ho A R FRE N (2,887,980) (1,655,737)
Increase in cash and bank balances B MIRTT4
— held on behalf of customers — REP,IFEEIN (920,087) (147,109)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R oAb FE S BR FE AN 990,992 173,613
Cash used in operations EEBFTRAR S (1,709,059) (847,422)
Income taxes paid ERETEH (78,896) (56,069)
Net cash used in operating activities REXGARTFE (1,787,955) (903,491)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_ZT—NWF=A=1+—HItFE

2014 2013
—2-IF e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THIT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHFMBRERE
Investment in joint ventures REELEZRE (5) 102
Payment for the purchase of property, TNEEYME  BELZEER
plant and equipment (28,986) (60,242)
Proceed from sale of available-for-sale KB HER R EREMSIIE
investment 2,991 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, REHEWE - BEKEE
plant and equipment FT15 7838 310 336
Interest received BFE 4,932 5,427
Dividend received B E 2,299 2,712
Net cash used in investing activities KB EBFTRR S5 (18,459) (51,665)
Cash flows from financing activities REETBHMERERE
Issue of shares under share option scheme BRI AR =t 2B 1T IR D - 22,227
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FEAT AR SR FRIBIE 0, O 2>)
shareholders 186,000 (263,300)
Increase in loan from a related company KE—KEENRERIEN 662,818 2,273,804
Proceed from/(repayment of) RERITEERMERE
bank borrowings (EEBRITEE) 1,174,000 (831,000)
Interest paid BEAF A (20,000) (20,000)
Dividend paid A (173,645) (183,645)
Net cash from financing activities BB EE TSRS FEE 1,829,173 998,086
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kB FEEEEINFEE 22,759 42,930
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#R 4 &kELZEER 188,102 145,172
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year SRS RIFASEEEE (FFE30)
(note 30) 210,861 188,102
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 10 April 1996 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Company’s shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 23 July 1996. The
address of its registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The Company’s parents are Active Dynamic Limited (“Active
Dynamic”) and Sure Expert Limited (“Sure Expert”) and the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider its
ultimate holding company is Active Dynamic. Active Dynamic
and Sure Expert are both incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The principal activity of the
Company continues to be investment holding. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 April 2013

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2009-2011

Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Offsetting Financial Assets and

Amendments to
HKAS 1 (Revised)
Amendments to

HKFRS 7 Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

NEEHR
ARABRR—ANARNFOATHEREARE
—HN—FREVEEBRETMAR LSRR
RERRXA - ARBRMOE—NANAREFLA
“t=BRREBMERZAARAF ([H
R ET e RABZEMPER R EES
EHMENFR [ ABER —EAHEE -

AR &l 2 £ A 7] A Active Dynamic Limited
([Active Dynamic|) & Sure Expert Limited
([Sure Expert]) * MARBEE([EE])R
B H & K2R A A A& Active Dynamic ©
Active Dynamic & Sure Expert¥3 i 3 & Bz
ZEES((RBRZHS]) KT -

ARBREMBRAN T XGRS ANE
B  ARRZEIBEBNMAREERER X
MB ARz EREBHNMBHRERME21 -

A

<

X

BMEREMBREEL (FREM
wEEA])

(a) TMHETRETEEHBER
HER — —F-=FMA—H
REXN

RAEE  AEBEBAUTBES
SEHAAGBE 2T REETES
BT R ER o

o

BEMBREER EENEE——F
(BATA) BE FRME
EANBREER ZT-TE-TCF
CHES) B FEE
BEMBREER —2——3-%-=%
CHEY B FEME

BEEEAF 1R Eth2ERARE

(BRTA) (B5T) Z 25
BEMBREEARTS, BHcREER

(B5TA) ERAE
BEYBREENF 0% SaMBRR
BEMBREEAS 1R AE%H
BEYBREENE 125 HERESNE

BREMHREEAF 13% ATEHNE

RO EREY  BUMEERR
(Z2—%)

EROERESY  BRERBEAF
(Z2—*%) REERE

BEGEANE19%  EEREA
(Z2—4%)
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 RHEBHBHREER( FEBEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) W EZAER ) @)
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BFREFBETEBHBER

effective 1 April 2013 (continued)

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

HKAS 1 has been amended to clarify that an opening
statement of financial position is required only when a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement or reclassification has a
material effect on the information presented in the
opening position. Further, this opening statement of
financial position does not have to be accompanied by
comparative information in the related notes. This is
consistent with the Group’s existing accounting policy.

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

The Basis of Conclusions for HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement was amended to clarify that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rate
can be measured at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
This is consistent with the Group’s existing accounting

policy.

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

The Basis of Conclusions to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
was amended to clarify that a first-time adopter is
allowed, but not required, to apply a new HKFRS that is
not mandatory if that HKFRS permits early application
and provided that HKFRS is applied in all periods
presented unless HKFRS 1 provides on exemption or
exception. The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the Group is
not a first-time adopter of HKFRS.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 RpERUBREEN(ERHM

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHREER D @
(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (@) RMHFT RIETEBHBER
effective 1 April 2013 (continued) HER ——F—-=FMA—H
RBAE RN ()

Amendments to HKAS1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the
Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future and those
that may not. Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.

The Group has adopted the amendments
retrospectively for the financial year ended 31 March
2014. ltems of other comprehensive income that may
and may not be reclassified to profit and loss in the
future have been presented separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The comparative information
has been restated to comply with the amendments. As
the amendments affect presentation only, there are no
effects on the Group’s financial position or
performance.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.
As a result, the Group has included an additional
disclosure in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BHMEAUKEHRESERN(EFBH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EZEA ) @
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BFREFBETEBHBER

effective 1 April 2013 (continued)
HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights
to variable returns from the investee and the ability to
use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the
assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances
where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size
relative to the size and dispersion of those of other
individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e.
the holder has the practical ability to exercise them.

The standard explicitly requires an assessment of
whether an investor with decision making rights is
acting as principal or agent and also whether other
parties with decision making rights are acting as agents
of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf of
and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The accounting requirements in
HKAS 27 (2008) on other consolidation related matters
are carried forward unchanged. The Group has
changed its accounting policy in determining whether it
has control of an investee and therefore is required to
consolidate that interest. The adoption of HKFRS 10
has no significant impact on the Group.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 RpERUBREEN(ERHM

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHREER D @
(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (@) RMHFT RIETEBHBER
effective 1 April 2013 (continued) HER ——F—-=FMA—H
RBAE RN ()

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS 31.
Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint operator
and will recognise its interests in the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses arising from the joint
arrangement. Where the Group has rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement as a whole, it is
regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). HKFRS 11
does not allow proportionate consolidation of a joint
venture arrangement. In an arrangement structured
through a separate vehicle, all relevant facts and
circumstances should be considered to determine
whether the parties to the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, the
existence of a separate legal entity was the key factor
in determining the existence of a jointly controlled entity
under HKAS 31. The Group has changed its accounting
policy for joint arrangements. The adoption of HKFRS
11 has no significant impact on the Group.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It also
introduces new disclosure requirements, including
those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks of
a reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s
financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 HRMERUBREEN(ERYN

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities (continued)

HKFRS 12 disclosures are provided in note 22. As the
new standard affects only disclosure, there is no effect
on the Group’s financial position and performance.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies to
both financial and non-financial items measured at fair
value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS
13 defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active
market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial statements
to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements
on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively.

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities and
therefore has no effect on the Group’s financial position
and performance. The standard requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements and these
are included in note 19 and 31. Comparative
disclosures have not been presented in accordance
with the transitional provisions of the standard.
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(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) RMHFT RIETEBHKER
effective 1 April 2013 (continued) HER ——F—-=FMA—H
Fike 2 )
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Hedge Accounting®
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities'’

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011)  Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'

HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies'

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle®

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014
& Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions

occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015

5 No mandatory effective date has yet been determined
but is available for adoption

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.
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RIS B R
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BRMEBUKREER(EBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BEER D@

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEEMEEKRERZHFT &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value
gains or losses will be recognised in statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward
the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss, where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39
— Hedge Accounting

The amendments overhaul hedge accounting to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements. Changes included in HKFRS 9
to address the own credit risk issue on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
can be applied in isolation without the need to change
any other accounting for financial instruments. The
amendments also remove the 1 January 2015 effective
date for HKFRS 9.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

RAEBUEREER ([FBE
B|REED ]

(b) TIMIEN K2 HET

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) — Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of
businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. It evaluates the performance of its
investments on a fair value basis. Investment entities
could include private equity organisations, venture
capital organisations, pension funds and investment
funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities to
measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than to consolidate them. The
amendments also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The amendments are applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) — Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are
independent of the number of years of service to be
recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered instead of
allocating the contributions to periods of service.

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of a hedging
instrument to a central counterparty meets specified
criteria.

SHNESRMEBFRAF

BT EBMBREER o)
ERMBREENE105 FEME
BEENF12FWRBEREAEAF27
FUERTHR) (=B ——F) — REER
ZEEFERANNTEREEBERZ
FREBERNER REEBZEERE
TEREAREZOR REWAK
FIERSMEMKREES - HIEAQF
BEEEFHEKERBZRR - RE
ERERLSRERE BRKE
B RARESRIREES -

REETHEBM B RELERE 105
RAEMBHRR 2EEARRERME—
EFSMER - WREREBRB BT
NP EFABRRRERENE A A
MABKZENBARSEE AR - %
FEANSBINEBRANREER I WE
HRE - BREICEYRA  HEAR
RAE T BRI -

EREHERFE195K (BFTE) (=%
——f) —REFAE  EEMHXK
A EE R B AT B AR TS S B 2 it
KRR AR TS < B R R R AR
HRL - 10 3 3% 3% F R B = RS
HAfA ©

BB ETERE IR (BRTA&) — 7
STACEERHISHEZER
ZEERFTANSGE R TAER T
REFHHEETHEGRNE - AI&H
RELEREHREE -

— T [UEER 73



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS B R

2

74

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BRMEBUKREER(EBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BEER D@

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEEMEEKRERZHFT &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HK (IFRIC) 21 — Levies

HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability to pay a levy imposed by government when the
activity that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent charges
to a number of standards where they are currently
unclear. Among them HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment has been amended to clarify how the gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation are
treated where an entity uses the revaluation model. The
carrying amount of the asset is restated to revalued
amount. The accumulated depreciation may be
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may be
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset and the accumulated
depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the Directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group’s financial statements.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except certain
properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values or revalued amounts as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 4.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

76

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in statement of profit
of loss and other comprehensive income. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of

4 FESHBE®
(a) EBEHRGEEE®R

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in
accordance with the transition requirements in the
standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to
estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

78

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(c) Joint arrangements

4 FESHBER®

(c) A¥%H

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there
is a contractual arrangement that confers joint control
over the relevant activities of the arrangement to the
group and at least one other party. Joint control is
assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

o Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

° The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

° Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the joint ventures’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

80

(continued)
(d) Goodwill arising from business

combinations

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over
the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on the acquisition date, after reassessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

4 FESHBER®
(e) W% - BERRE

The land classified as being held under finance leases
and buildings thereon are stated at valuation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Fair value is
determined by an independent firm of qualified property
valuers. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these
assets does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings held for own use are generally dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

82

(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

— Building situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

—  Leasehold improvement, furniture,

fixture and equipment

—  Motor vehicles 20%—-33%

—  Yacht 10%

10%-50%

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year in which they
are incurred.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Upon the disposal of property, the relevant portion of
the revaluations reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the property revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

(9)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expenses, over
the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprise food and beverage, consumable
and other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make to
the sales.
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84

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments

U

Financial assets

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

U

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets
are part of a group of financial assets which is
managed and its performance evaluated on a fair
value basis according to a documented
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

86

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtors’ financial difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including
trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Gains or losses are
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

88

(i)

@

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset where
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or where the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are ready convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and investments in subsidiaries and associate to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e.
the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value
in use) of a non-financial asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits in the form of
leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the company in
an independently-administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. The company’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are recognised as an expense in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as incurred.

For all its employees in Macau, fixed contributions
are made based on the employment term and are
charged to profit and loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the retirement
security system.

Obligations for contributions to social security
fund are recognised as an expense in statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Employee benefits (continued)

90

(0

(iii) Share-based payments
Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments.
Details regarding the share-based payments are
set out in note 39.

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Share-based
payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Share-based payments
to parties other than employees (and those providing
similar services) are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group cannot
estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or services
received, the Group is required to measure the fair
value by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of share-based payments
are set out in note 39.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0

(m)

Share-based payments (continued)

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the services rendered in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense and
credited to a share-based payment reserve under
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve over the remaining vesting period.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to share premium.
The proceeds received net of any direct attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be released directly to retained
earnings.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes profit
or loss items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

92

(n)

Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure to settle the obligation.
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BRI ot

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition
Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised as
income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal mandate
when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

Revenue arising from service provided for gaming
operations in mass market halls, electronic gaming
halls and VIP rooms is recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered and the Group is entitled
to the share of gross win and gross loss in respect of
the operating performance from the gaming operator.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

94

(0)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised
upon the provision of the accommodation services.

Revenue from food and beverage sales and other
ancillary services are recognised upon the provision of
goods and services.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.
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SRR MR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties

(i)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(a) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

4 FESHBER®

(ry BEAL
() MWHRIERER @ ZBALHZ
AANTHGORERAE R EAREE

BHE

(a) HAKEAEHERK
YR I

(b) HAKBEERTEDN:
=

(c) BAEEXAATZAF
ITBEEMAS -

(i)  fRERTIERER - ZEEE
WEREAEEARE

(a) ZREREKASEER—
EH K E (RIS E AR - K
BRAAKRENBEARE
HREAE) °

(b) —EEESS ERAH
%%}\ijz/\%ﬁ%(‘m%%
—SEKEMNBEAL

KEERE Mz B

J%Jﬁt’ilﬁ’lﬁﬁi/@l)

(c) MEERBBZTAERE=FH
& ERE o

(d) —fl“a’; kk_‘é’-f@%fi”\]éi\
ﬁ%&ﬁ BEREFE=

4 ) %«%/\i :

() XEBR/RAKHIEAL
BEHENERENERR
T B A BER IR B AIRT &

) ZEBRXOBEMBMNAL
A EES -

R()a)BATERIALTHE
BEAFE IREER
HERNFRF) SR
EAB-

Eei)
kﬂ\@ /7

—

m

SHESRMEBMERAT — T FFER 95



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS B R

4
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(iy  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

(s) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The non-current assets are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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BRI ot

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
pbased on historical experience, the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence
arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews
on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to
be valid.

Estimated fair value of leasehold properties

The fair value of each hotel property individually is
determined at the end of the reporting period by independent
professional valuers using the income approach whereby the
incomes derived from the hotel and casino operations with
regard to past trading accounts and the rental income
derived from existing tenancies on the property interest are
capitalised at an appropriate rate of return with due
allowance for outgoings and expenses wherever applicable.
This methodology is based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the
property and future economic conditions. The fair value of
each leasehold property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the

property.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amount of that asset will be performed.
Triggering events include significant adverse changes in the
market value of an asset, changes in the business or
regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgement from
management with respect to whether such an event has
occurred.

Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the present
value of estimated net future cash flows which the Group
expects to generate from the future use of the asset, plus
residual value of the asset on disposal. Where the
recoverable amount of non-financial assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment is performed based on the
discounted cash flow analysis. This analysis relies on factors
such as forecast of future performance and long-term growth
rates and the selection of discount rates. If these forecast
and assumptions prove to be inaccurate or circumstances
change, further write-down or reversal of the write-down of
the carrying value of the non-financial assets may be
required.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment loss on advances to customers in
margin financing, trade and other receivables
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of advances
to customers in margin financing, trade and other
receivables. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit and loss when
there is objective evidence that the amounts is not
recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aged
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised based on the estimation of the future cash flow
expected to receive and a suitable discounted rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in the Macau and Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of the
related payments. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will have
impact on the income tax and/or deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share option granted was calculated using
the Trinomial pricing model and Market Approach based on
the Group’s management’s significant inputs into calculation
included an estimated life of share options granted to be half
to three years based on exercise restrictions and behavioral
consideration, the volatility of share price, weighted average
share prices and exercise price of the share options granted,
the number of working hours and the consultant fees to be
charged in the provision of the consultancy service, etc.
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RIS B R

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services, and has seven (31
March 2013: seven) reporting operating segments as follows:

Financial services segments:

— Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements
segment is the provision of brokerage, underwriting
and placements services for dealings in securities on
recognised stock exchanges.

— Margin and initial public offers (“IPO”) financing
segment is the provision of credits in these
transactions.

—  Other financial services include provision of corporate
finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

Hotel and gaming segments:

— Hotel ownership and management segment is the
operation of hotels and provision of hotel management
services.

— Food and beverage segment is the operation of
restaurants in hotels.

— Casino segment is the operation of casino in hotels.
Securities investment segment:
—  Securities investment segment is the trading of listed

securities.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable operating segments.
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SRR MR

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation (adjusted EBITDA). Interest income and
expenditure and certain income and expenses (including
depreciation, taxation, expenses in relation to the grant of
share options, impairment losses, write-off of property, plant
and equipment, surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment) are not included in the result of each operating
segment that is reviewed by the management. Other
information provided, except as noted below, to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 2EER®
Operating segments E ¥y Sk
The following tables represent segment information of the TREVNRMASEEEEEBREZAEE DR
Group provided to the Group’'s management for the year REBE_E-—NFER-_T—=F=A=1+—
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively. HIFEEZ2HEER -
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—F—mME=Z/F=1+—HIFE
Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin Other Financial  ownership
and and IPO financial service and  Foodand Securities
placements  financing services  business management  beverage Casino  Investment Total
RELR
BEEL.  BROH At SREE  EEEA BRR
BEREE  RERE  SREH £H RER 7R BY  R5RE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién TR Tén Tién TéR TR Tién TER Tén
Segment Revenue pox 1
External customers HRR 200,698 659,204 29,990 889,892 209,246 37,650 710,897 - 1,847,685
Inter-segment L kil - 960 991 37,924 - 7,152 - 46,067
200,729 659,204 30,950 890,883 247,170 37,650 718,049 - 1,893,752
Adjusted EBITDA EREAFRE SR
HEREHAER 218,451 613,990 29,990 862,431 169,660 (6,547) 312,209 (830) 1,336,923
Segment Assets PEEE 21,892,079 2,609,053 441,510 490,571 48,692 25481905
Capital expenditure EASH 87 18,468 3,430 3,063 - 25,048
Segment Liabilities PEEE 7,285,705 240,845 10,398 33,263 5 7,570,236
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®
Operating segments (continued) ¥¥oEw®
For the year ended 31 March 2013 B FT—=F=H=+—HIFE
Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin QOther Financial  ownership
and and IPO financial service and Food and Securities
placements financing services business management  beverage Casino Investment Total
FEER

it (- O\ i SBEE  ERAE RER
BEREE  ERERE  SERH S RER i fBY  E5RA a3t
HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS00D  HKSODO  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS$000
Th TRL ThR Th THR ThR ThR ThR ThL

Segment Revenue PRhE

External customers gER 150,578 453410 12,980 616,968 178738 39,482 542,800 - 1377988
Inter-segment PERH 2 - 960 984 50,836 - 6,152 - 66,972
150,602 453410 13,940 617,952 238,574 39,482 548 952 - 1444080

Adjusted EBITDA BREAFRE  FER-
FEREEHER 165,578 407,583 12,082 586,143 169,179 (45%0) 207,305 1733 959,830
Segment Assets PEEE 18102133 2151112 457,142 422787 50,121 21,183,295
Capital expenditure BAx - 33,264 T474 23,704 - 64,442
Segment Liabilities AEAE 4,726,108 179,168 14,692 29993 - 494991
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RIS B R

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®

Operating segments (continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,

assets and liabilities

eSS0 )

DEWE - KABRTRE - S - 8

R#EMBNREERREZHIR

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Segment revenue oW = 1,893,752 1,444,960
Elimination of inter-segment revenue D R (46,067) (66,972)
Consolidated revenue ;e 1,847,685 1,377,988
Adjusted EBITDA RARRTRE - FTEH -
FERBHEANRT 1,336,923 959,830

Other income H A W A 4,163 5,050
Interest income A EHA 620 734
Exchange gain & (4,328) (4,781)
Corporate staff cost AaE]B TR (87,242) (73,054)
Corporate overhead NAElEERX (115,361) (105,811)
Depreciation e (121,049) (109,103)
Gain on lapse of derivative TEEmBBErRRZ

financial liabilities Wz 21,722 -
Expenses in relation to the grant of BRARHERE A

share options - (494)
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 RhEMBWEIRZ 2 RERE

other receivables - (874)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEEDEEE (1,262) (435)
Write off of property, plant and equipment #1% - 5 M & il s4 - (11,856)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME  BMEAREZ

plant and equipment Wt (E18) 310 (503)
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land ~ FA& +ih M2 F 2 B(H A&

and buildings - 10,732
Finance cost BhE RN (58,800) (56,552)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade BEIE 5 &k E A ERER K 2R EEE

and other receivables - 1,359
Impairment loss on intangible assets BHIELEBFEE

held for sale AR (74,741) -
Taxation 1B (125,235) (74,209)
Profit for the year FRERA 775,720 540,033
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments (continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,

assets and liabilities (continued)

PEER @
Sk (0}

DEWE - KABRTRE - AEH - FE
REEMBNREERABEZHER@®

2014 2013

—F-mF —F=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&xT FET

Segment assets THEEE 25,481,905 21,183,295
Deferred tax assets IRIETHIBE = 6,107 6,107
Loan receivable B E R - 406,827
Intangible assets held for sale FELEREEAE 322,685 -
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE 1,387 4,895
Unallocated corporate assets AOBERAREE 61,847 50,138
Total assets EEHAE 25,873,931 21,651,262
Segment liabilities PEEE 7,570,236 4,949,961
Promissory notes A g - 961,200
Amounts due to shareholders FET IR B R IE 2,410,000 900,000
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEARBE 3,806 13,086
Total liabilities BEAE 9,984,042 6,824,247

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax assets, loan receivables, intangible
assets held for sale, available-for-sale investments and
assets used jointly by reportable segments.

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than the promissory notes, amounts due to
shareholders and liabilities for which reportable

segments are jointly liable.

RERNBERARIEIEHER

s KBREEREEE BKRENR - FHEH
EBVEE AHHERERERD

BARERZEEN

REZ2HIEA -

FEEEED

s KBAIER BNERRFERZ2HD

BARAEZAEBIN

RE2HI8E -

FBERED D
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments (continued)

Geographical segment information

The Group’s financial services are located in Hong Kong and
the other operations are mainly located in Macau of The
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

TEER @

ES Sk [

HESEER

AEEZ&RBRBURES - mEMERKD
FTEMRPEARLEFAR([HEH])BMA -

NEBRBEEREEMENR DB ZHF
BER -

2014 2013

—E—-mEF —T—=%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong BB 11,012,181 11,016,386
Macau P 3,287,860 2,830,497
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 14,300,041 13,846,883

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and statutory
deposit for financial services business.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of corresponding years contributing
over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as follows:

Hiat JE B BEET BIFFEERBEER 2R
BFEBZLERE -

TERFEN
HERE TP B B 2 s A7 S B AR
BB 10% 2 AR :

2014 2013
—EF-mF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sociedade De Jogos De Macau, S.A. SRPIER RN BRAR ([BIE])
(“SIM”) (note) (K1:E) 690,937 523,899

Note: Revenue from income from casino

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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7 REVENUE 7 W&
2014 20118
—B-mF —EF—=4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial services business S RRIEER
— securities brokerage, underwriting — BHEL  BIEREE
and placements 200,698 150,578
— margin and IPO financing —REERBEAAFAEE/ME 659,204 453,410
— other financial services — H & B ARTS 29,990 12,980
Hotels and gaming business BIE R IR
— room rental — EHEfAS 202,503 175,268
— food and beverage — B &Rk 57,608 58,078
— gaming revenue — B K= 690,937 523,899
— other rental income — HmAS WA 6,745 3,775
1,847,685 1,377,988
OTHER INCOME 8 Hthlg A
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Handling Charge FEE 12,593 7,573
Dividend income =X ON 2,299 2,712
Reversal of impairment loss on BEmEFPRANRECHE
advances to customers in margin AR B 5 K H th B I BR 3X
financing, trade and other receivables ZRBEER 16,085 1,359
Bad debts recovery U [B] =2 B 14,807 -
Gain on lapse of derivative e AL =N E TN
financial liabilities 21,722 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - BE &EE 2 WS
plant and equipment 310 -
Management fee income BEEIA 600 1,050
Sundry income HIEUT A 3,564 3,033
71,980 15,727
SHULHEEERAT —T NFEFH 107
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9 STAFF COSTS 9 BIMNK
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXAK(BREESZME)
remuneration)
— salaries, wages and other benefits — W TENEMEF 189,119 167,749
— contributions to defined contribution ~ — EFEHFOERETEIHR
retirement plan 1,090 983
— equity-settled share-based payment  — BEEZHAERRE 2 R
expenses in relation to the grant of R BEBS N2
share options - 494
Total staff costs BT A 4E5E 190,209 169,226
10 FINANCE COST 10 @MERA
2014 2013
—ZT-NEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Interest on promissory notes A E IR F B 58,800 56,552
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11 TAXATION 11 BB
2014 2013
—E-QmEF —F—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THIT

Current tax: BIHATRIA -

Hong Kong profits tax EBNERH 128,283 77,404
Macau profit tax RIS 1,214 =
Deferred tax EIERTE (4,262) (3,195)
125,235 74,209

(b)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year
ended 31 March 2014 at a rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%).

Macau Complementary Tax has been provided for the
year ended 31 March 2014 at rate of 12% (2013: Nil).
Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Good Start Group
Limited, received a tax notice issued by Macau
Financial Services Bureau dated 29 April 2014
assessing its Macau Complementary Tax payable for
the year of assessment 2009 and 2010 to be
approximately HK$15,000,000 and HK$20,000,000
respectively. No such taxation has been provided for
current and previous years up to the year ended 31
March 2014. Details are disclosed in note 46.

SHNESRMEBFRAF

HE_T-ME=A=t+—BILFE
EBFEHEERTE165%(ZF—=
F 16.5%) FHEERAE -

(2T NFE=A=+—HIFE -

BFMERHARERRE12% (ZF
—=F: \)FIEEE - REEZT
—NE=ZRA=+—HILEFER A&
Bz 2 &8 2 & Good Start Group
Limited 4 ER PIBF BB A% ) H HA &
—E-NEMA-+AB 2B
E FEER_ZETENEFER_ZT—F
FRBFE 2RSS
A 49 /15,000,000 7% 7T & 20,000,000
BT RAFEREE-T—NOF=
A=+—HLEFEZBEFE  HE
HBEBRIETIREE - BEFFBERW
TTA46HEE o
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11 TAXATION (continued) 11 T%IE%
(c) Income tax arising in other jurisdictions in calculated at (c) REMENERERESZFAEH KRS
rate prevailing in respective jurisdictions. AEER ZBRITHEGE -
(d) The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit (d) FAFRBERHEHGEEBERNMNEMEMEIE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit max AR ANS A SERINT -
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
—ZT-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Profit before taxation PR AR A 900,955 614,242
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of AR E 16.5% 518 2 Fi1A

16.5% 148,658 101,350
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E#h FEER LY 2 HBA

operating in other jurisdictions HEIARZZE (14,684) (11,555)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D%REEKZ%R?{? £l 116,100 97,254
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRIRAZ ISR 2 (129,862) (119,361)
Deferred tax assets not recognised *EEa,g\}\,_LmlﬁéF 8,576 7,513
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised FARERZHIEEE (2,939) -
Others Hith (614) (992)
Taxation for the year FAFIE 125,235 74,209
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12

13

14

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the
following:

12

BR Bt Al 2 A
RBATRRIE B THIEE -

2014 2013

—E-ImF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Auditors’ remuneration ZERRD N 2,126 1,973
Marketing, advertising and ZiH - BE R

promotion expenses HEER 83,359 25,980

Operating lease charges KERLEE 35,955 34,897

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a profit of HK$111,504,000 (2013:
HK$215,367,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 September 2013 and 2012.

The directors of the Company recommended the payment of
final dividend of HK1.5 cent per share for the year ended 31
March 2014 (2013: HK1 cent per share).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year were amounted to HK$173,645,000 (2013:
HK$173,645,000).

13

14

RRAER ARG RR

KAREE AEIEZRE BT BIERA QR
&= AN ER IR &2 111,504,000 T ( — &
—=4F : 215,367,000 7T) Z %Al °

RE
BE-T- =FR-F-—FAA=t+HL
ANEA L EE RS -

ARFEFRHARNE_FT—WE= ]
=+ — AL EERA R MR SR 1555
(ZB—=%: SRUBW) -

RERHEE MR 2 £ — @8 B F E AR
N AR s IR I B A 173,645,000 T (=
T — =4 : 173,645,000 7T) °
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 BRER

2014 2013
—E-NF —F=F
HK cent HK cent
AL Al
Basic earnings per share BREAREF 4.44 3.10
Diluted earnings per share BREERT] 4.44 3.10

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRELXER

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per

share are as follows:

AEEREABMNER ZANRE B
BT

2014 2013
—E-NF —ET—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit for the purpose of basic STEEREREF ZEF
earnings per share 771,060 537,884
2014 2013
—ZT—NF —T—=F

Weighted average number of ordinary LA INAE L5 &

shares

Weighted average number of
non-redeemable convertible

preference shares

7B 8 2 T S AR 5 R
DTS2

12,114,480,666 12,101,794,803

5,250,000,000 5,250,000,000

Weighted average number of shares
for the purposes of basic earnings

per share

SAESRELRAN 2B
AR 8

17,364,480,666 17,351,794,803

(b) Diluted earnings per share

(b)

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31

March 2014 and 2013.
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16 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

16 HZ2EWA

2014 2013
—E-OF —T-=%
Before tax Tax  Aftertax Before tax Tax  After tax
Bl BE B A Gz Bk
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR THT THTL THT
Surplus on revaluation of METHRET ERRH
leasehold land and buildings 550,818 (66,098) 484,720 345,715 (41,486) 304,229
Unrealised (loss)/gain arising AHEHERENTEE
from change in fair value of EEXZKER(BR)/
available-for-sale investments Yzs (517) - (517) 323 - 323
Exchange differences arising BMEBINEBEE L
on translation of foreign BN AR
operations (23,404) - (23,404) - - -
Other comprehensive Hit2ERA
income 526,897 (66,098) 460,799 346,038 (41,486) 304,552
17 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 17 EEME

An analysis of remuneration paid and payable to directors of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013

HE-_Z-NER_T—=F=A=+—H
IFFE  ENRENARREEZME T

and is set as follows: T
Salaries,
allowances Discretionary ~ Retirement
Directors’  and benefits bonus scheme 2014
fee in kind payment  contribution Total
EZ =4 B EifztE —B-OF
Bz REVAR OES (e Rt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
ThER TER TER THR THR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chu Nicholas Yuk-yui RRBEE - 6,818 5,000 15 11,833
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FREXL - 18,957 15,000 15 33,972
Mr. Ho Chi Ho* fIEREE - 447 - 4 451
Independent non-executive directors BIUEHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EEERT 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lau Man Tak B ELE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan KACELE 100 - - - 100
300 26,222 20,000 34 46,556
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17

114

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

17 EEM €

Salaries,
allowances  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’  and benefits bonus scheme 2013
fee in kind payment  contribution Total
e 28 ETEA BIREE —B-=F
EEHE  REDHR 3 R G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THT TBT THET
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui REABESE - 6,529 5,000 14 11,543
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL - 17,570 8,000 14 25,584
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen BRERL 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lau Man Tak 2 Er s 100 - - - 100
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan SACEE 100 - - _ 100
300 24,099 13,000 28 37,427

* Mr. Ho Chi Ho (“Mr. Ho") is one of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 March
2014. Before the date of appointment of director, Mr. Ho’s
salaries and other emoluments and retirement scheme
contributions were HK$1,969,000 and HK$11,000 respectively.
Taking into account Mr. Ho’s director’s remuneration as per
table, his total salary and other emoluments and retirement
scheme contributions for the year ended 31 March 2014 were
HK$2,416,000 and HK$15,000 respectively.

The discretionary bonus payment was determined by
reference to the individual performance of the directors and
approved by the Remuneration Committee.

No directors have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

There were no emoluments paid or payable as an
inducement to directors to join the Group and no emoluments
were paid or payable to the directors as compensation for
loss of office during the year ended 31 March 2014 and
2013.
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* IERAEE(AE]) BAEBREZ=-F
—ME=ZA=+—HAIFEREZSHA
+Z— REZLAREFHL (4L
Z g KBNS A KR K E B 5 7 5
4 1,969,000/87T K 11,0008 7T ° i1 R L&
EEZEERS  EREBEZ T —M9F
A=t HIFEZHFREMB 42
BE LA R AR URET &I 54053 5l 3 2,416,000 5 7T
% 15,0007 °

BBEEANRD2EZERTZBAARBEE
WEHMEZ S HE -

BEEECHELARENEREZE_T—NOF
Kk —FB—=F=A=1—HLEFEZERH

N
S

2 E—NFERK T —=F=H=+—H
IHFE BESINRENESHE  (EAK
EMBAEE 2 RE) S EARERAE -
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18

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 3 (2013:
2) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 17.
The emoluments in respect of the remaining 2 (2013: 3)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

18 REHF AL

AEBRSHALTH  =R(ZE—=F"'M
Z)VREE REZHMEECRWE17HE -
HB$MA (ZE—=F : ZR)&aF Atz
BT

2014 2013

—E-MF —T=%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT FHEIT

Salaries and other emoluments e ME M5 11,505 11,507
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 30 43
11,535 11,550

The emolument of the above individual was within the
following band:

ERALZENFIATEE :

2014 2013
—EF-nmE —F=F
Number of Number of

person person

AE A#

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

3,000,001 7 7T £ 3,500,000 7% 7T
3,500,001 7 7L E 4,000,000 7% 7T
4,000,001 7 7L £ 4,500,000 7T
5,000,001 % 7T £ 5,500,000 70
6,000,001 % 7T £ 6,500,000 7 7T

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest
paid individual as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31

March 2014 and 2013.

f& -

SHNESRMEBFRAF

HE-2-MER-F-=F=A=+—§
LA - AR

REHFALTINHERN

—T-mEFR

M - ERRFINBEAEE 2 R BRI
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19 Y% - BERREE

116

Leasehold Leasehold
land and improvement,
buildings furniture,
held for fixture and Motor
The Group REE own use equipment vehicles Yacht Total
BEBRAZ HEWE
HELH £E- &R -
kEF RERZE RE iid ait
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT TER TEx TERT TER
Cost or valuation A E
At 1 April 2012 N-Z——FWA—H 2,429,181 325,890 6,207 25,717 2,786,995
Additions NE - 67,024 1,281 - 68,305
Disposal HE - (1,230) (867) (6) (2,103)
Written off HsH - (48,150) - - (48,150)
Adjustment on revaluation EHAE 292,089 = = - 292,089
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=A=1+—H 2,721,270 343,534 6,621 25,711 3,097,136
Representing: RE:
Cost B AR = 343,534 6,621 25,711 375,866
At 2013 valuation BT —=FhE 2,721,270 - - - 2,721,270
2,721,270 343,534 6,621 25,711 3,097,136
At 1 April 2013 R-Z—=FMA—H 2,721,270 343,534 6,621 25,711 3,097,136
Additions NE - 24,996 778 - 25,774
Disposal HE - - (1,484) - (1,484)
Adjustment on revaluation B AR 476,760 - - - 476,760
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NFE=A=+—H 3,198,030 368,530 5,915 25,711 3,598,186
Representing: R
Cost BEN - 368,530 5,915 25,711 400,156
At 2014 valuation R_T—MER/E 3,198,030 - - - 3,198,030
3,198,030 368,530 5,915 25,711 3,598,186
Accumulated depreciation Z:HTE
At 1 April 2012 R-_TE——FA—H - 227,637 5,331 9,190 242,158
Charge for the year FERHG 64,357 41,524 642 2,580 109,103
Eliminated on disposals A E R 6 = (397) (867) () (1,265)
Eliminated on written off S EE TR - (36,294) - - (36,294)
Adjustment on revaluation EHAE (64,357) = = - (64,357)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%=A=+—H - 232,470 5,106 11,769 249,345
At 1 April 2013 R-_Z—=FMA—H - 232,470 5,106 11,769 249,345
Charge for the year ERHG 74,058 43,809 602 2,580 121,049
Eliminated on disposals PSR - - (1,484) - (1,484)
Adjustment on revaluation BEHE (74,058) - - - (74,058)
At 31 March 2014 R_E—NFE=A=+—H - 276,279 4,224 14,349 294,852
Net book value REEE
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-—NFE=F=+—H 3,198,030 92,251 1,691 11,362 3,303,334
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—H 2,721,270 111,064 1,515 13,942 2,847,791
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19 Y%  BERRKRE®

(continued)

(a) The leasehold land and buildings held for own use are (@) MMRRFIZFHIEEREELHRET
situated in Macau under medium term leases. TR EATE 4056 -

(b) The Group’s leasehold land and buildings for own use (b) AEBFEEACZCHELIMEEFR
were revalued as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. The ZENERZE—=F=A=+—
valuations were carried out by AA Property Services HETEM - EffHBIULGERMIRT
Limited, an independent valuer who holds recognised MEBRARARMEST - BRAGERD
and relevant professional qualifications and has recent FERA MBEBEEES WM
experience in the location and category of the BEHE i REF et B KR
leasehold land and buildings being valued. The MK AEBEEEEDRNSHE
Group’s management has discussion with the surveyors B AR 1T (b (B R ELR S A 7 7R A B
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results ERFZREELS

when the valuation is performed at each reporting date.
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of leasehold land and buildings are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
hierarchy input(s)
DTEER HERTREEBAUE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATTRRBARE

(b)

19 Y% BERRKRE®

(&)

TRASIARREATEIEZHA
B 2 B SRAR 0 A B e T b
RBTZ ATE(EERAMER 2 M
AT R AR AR AT E R B
SrATEER(E—REE=H) 2
& o

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair

value Sensitivity
TIRRBAYER BHEE
AHEZBE

As at 31 March 2014
RZZ-MF=A=1+—-H

Properties in
Macau

kS

118

Income capitalisation approach

The key inputs are:

(1)  Capitalisation rates;

(2)  Daily room rates;

(3)  Monthly casino performance;

WARRERR

TERAHER

(1) ExEAX:
@ EREEEE:
@) BHEARE:

Level 3
F=f

Capitalisation rates, taking into account of

the capitalisation of rental income potential,

nature of the property, and prevailing
market condition, of 4% to 15%.

EHRBSRNEN BRERER - D%

HERRTIR  BREAXRE4%E15%

Daily room rates of HK$761 to HK$922 in
average for the base level.
EXREERHESTHNT 761 ETE922
BT o

Monthly casino performance of HK$6.87
million to HK$21.8 million in average.
#5858 11916870000 E
21,800,000 7T ©

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value.

BREAEYS  ATESE -

o

The higher the daily room
rate, the higher the fair value.

ZRERALHER  ATEY

e

The higher the monthly
casino performance, the
higher the fair value.
BoEAXENS  ATER

’%o

If the capitalisation rate to the valuation
model is 1% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
decrease by approximately
HK$307,149,000 or increase by
approximately HK$401,437,000
respectively.
fAEEES 2 BRERE L/ T
1% MAARLEESARTE A%
ZIREES B 4)307,149,000 8 3K
SE 1047 401,437, 000757 ©

If the daily room rate to the valuation
model is 5% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$29,033,000.

Bz EEERES L/ T’
5% @ MR EME &R TE - Blx
ZEEERRIE,/ D 429,033,000
BT

If the casino performance to the valuation
model is 5% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$59,412,000.

fufaEREA 2 B TARE LT/ TR
5% * MAE At E B &R TE - Blx
ZIREES R0,/ 7D 4159,412,000
BT
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings for own
use in Macau as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are
measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings. At the end of each
reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. The
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available,
the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the board of directors of the
Company.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.

19 % BERRE®

(b)

SHNESRMEBFRAF

(&)

RZE—NFE_FT—=ZF=A
=+—H BEEAZAMEELH
MEFZAFETFERAERTATHR
BABE CHERMNGTE WO BEA
ANFPEEHE=H -

NHERTERAERRE
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

120

(b)

(c)

(continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of Level
3 fair value measurements are as follows:

19 V¥  BERRKRE®

(b)

(#8)

E=MATEFBEHZFRBBHN
T

2014

—E—mF

The Group HK$’000
FEM TR
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) SR (BE=REEEATFE) 2,721,270
Gains: included in other comprehensive income s sFAEMEERA 476,760
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) HRAER(FE=BEEUATE) 3,198,030

As at 31 March 2014, the net amount of revaluation
surplus was HK$550,818,000. After tax surplus of
HK$484,720,000 has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
property revaluation reserve of the Group and the
balance was recognised in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. As at 31 March
2013, total amount of revaluation surplus was
HK$356,446,000. After tax surplus of HK$304,229,000
had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the property revaluation reserve of
the Group and the balance of HK$10,732,000 was
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014

(c)

R-ZE—ME=A=+—H ' BEF&
#4558 5 550,818,000/8 7T ° KrFi1é &
#: 484,720,000 78 T E R E b 2 E WA
R TEASEZVESEGHHHR
i HEBEAEBRSEREMEEERR
R -R_E—=F=A=+—08"
B (H A 1A%E 5 356,446,00078 7T ° kR
Fi 18 2842 304,229,000 TE N E M2
ARARER WEASBZYESH
s 25t 0 A5 10,732,000 7T 8l
Rk EMEEIamRER o



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(d) Had these properties held for own use been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$1,387,125,000 (2013:

HK$1,425,926,000).

19 Y%  BERRKRE®

(d) BRZEFFHIEFAAMEERAERR

SrITES KR AIBREAMBEREAR
1,387,125,0008 t( = & — = F :

1,425,926,00087T) °

Leasehold
improvement,
furniture,
fixtures and Motor
The Company /NG| equipment vehicles Total
HEWE
£ KM -
HERRE AE a&t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET TR
Cost (DN
At 1 April 2012 R-—Z——#mA—H 2,571 1,041 3,612
Additions NG 3,851 - 3,851
At 31 March 2013 and RZE—=F=H=+—H
1 April 2013 k-_Z—=®FpNA—H 6,422 1,041 7,463
Additions NE 32 767 799
Disposals & - (868) (868)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—NE=A=1+—H 6,454 940 7,394
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FNA—H 2,467 1,041 3,508
Charge for the period HI kR 448 - 448
At 31 March 2013 and RZZE—=$=A=+—H
1 April 2013 N—Z—=FMA—H 2,915 1,041 3,956
Charge for the year FANHBR 823 115 938
Eliminated on disposals HERF S - (868) (868)
At 31 March 2014 RZF—MF=A=+—A 3,738 288 4,026
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2014 R-_Z—m&E=A=+—-H 2,716 652 3,368
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=fA=1+—H 3,507 - 3,507
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122

GOODWILL 20 EE
2014 2013
—E-NF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Carrying amount of goodwill EEREE 10,996,683 10,996,683

The carrying amount of goodwill relating to the cash-
generating units engaged in securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$3,628,905,000,
HK$7,148,237,000 and HK$219,541,000 respectively. For the
purposes of the goodwill impairment test, its recoverable
amount was determined based on a value in use calculation,
covering a detailed 4-year budget plan plus an extrapolated
cash flow projections applying a steady growth rate
subsequent to this 4-year plan, with a discount rate of
approximately 9.66%.

As at 31 March 2014, the recoverable amount for the cash-
generating units engaged in securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$4,099,000,000,
HK$10,494,000,000 and HK$403,000,000 respectively.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

(i) the annual growth rates of revenue were estimated
ranging from 7% to 16%, 7% to 8% and 7% to 8% for
securities services, margin and IPO financing and
corporate finance advisory services respectively
throughout the 4-year budget plan. Cash flow beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
growth rate of 3% (2013: 3%).

(i)  that gross margins will be maintained at their current
levels throughout the 4-year budget plan.

The Group management’'s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’s development. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
businesses.
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20 GOODW'LL (continued)

21

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the cash-generating units above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

No impairment loss is provided for the year ended 31 March
2014 (2013: Nil). The Directors performed an impairment test
for the goodwill and concluded that the CGUs demonstrate
sufficient cashflow projections that justify the carrying value
of the goodwill. Management did not consider impairment of
goodwill necessary.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 BEw

B XA TR G R B A EE Y 2
BEZ  AKEERERN L TOBER
R Ry SR BHZ LB -

HE_ZT-—NF=RA=+—HILFE HE
RREFLREBREGB( T —=4F:
&) BEZRCETHERENR  SHER
RRCELEVENENRERERAME
AN EAXFEHEREE EEERRBA
R EERE -

21 RBARZRE

The Company
RAE

2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRRD - IR E 11,585,466 11,585,466
Amounts due from subsidiaries A I EENGIE R 4,316,550 3,418,946
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A T8 (1,163,424) (727,767)
14,738,592 14,276,645
Amount receivable within one year —FEREIER R (399,168) (406,836)
14,339,424 13,869,809

Amount receivable within one year is loan of HK$399, 168,000
(2013: HK$406,836,000) to a subsidiary which was interest-
free and repayable within one year.

Apart from the above, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries
were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of
repayment. The amounts were non-current in nature.

—F R T A — R B AR AERE K
399,168,000;& 7T (—F — =4 : 406,836,000
ABIL) - BEERL A ERBR —FAE
}:%‘ o

Br Bt E SN - U e BB A B RRIE T

HiH - R EREEEERY - ZFKEBIE
BNEAMEE -

SHESRMEBMERAT — T FFER 123



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS B R

21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

21 RBRARIZERE @)
TREZINEEFEAREEEE EEXE
BZHBRARFE - B EIRBEEIN - AT
A&7 28 Bl B S 3m A% o

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company MR BER 2/ SRR & ADT  HBAF  activities
AR EH KE BRRAFE BRER 58 BE IEXEK
Bebright Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
PABRAF EERTHE 17T REER
Futuremind Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRUES 1% REER
GR Casa Real Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$5 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBELEE 5%TT REER
GR Casa Real (HK) Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100%  Operating booking
Company Limited BB 28T office for Casa
ERSRAE (BE) Real Hotel
AR RERSREE
EETRET
GR Casa Real Company ~ Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Casa
Limited P 100,0002F9 7T Real Hotel
EXEBBEFRAA KEEREEBIE
Glory State Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
BE 1B REER
Golden Resorts Group Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Grandview
Hotel Investment Limited 2P 100,0002F 7T Hotel
EEERBERE BERRBE
BRAF
Goventure Finance British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino
Limited " RBRAHE IE in hotels
NBELERS

124 Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RBRARIZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERRLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company MR BEk 2/ ERIR A5EE AQF  HBAF  activities
AR EH T B BRRAFE ERER 58 BE FEER
Next Champion Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
EBRAHE 1% REZRR
Golden 28 Club* Macau HK$10,000,000 80% - 80%  Operating casino
EEBEEE" 1 10,000,000 77T in hotels
WNBER RS
Target All Investments British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino
Limited " RERUES e in hotels
EhREBRAR" WNBELERS
Good Start Group British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino
Limited " RBRAHE IE in hotels
NBELERES
Brilliant Red Limited * British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
BAOER AR EERTHE = REER
Crystal Sea Group Limited" British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RBRUHE E and operating
Golden Times Club’
in hotel
REZRRNBIE
KEERRA
EEE
Noble Brand Limited* British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Trading of listed
EBRIHE e securities
BELMES
Right Business Limited* British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
HERR AR EBRAHE 100%7T REER
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21 RBRARIZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERERRLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company MR BEER 2R/ CRIR AEE AQF  HBAF  activities
NREMH Fa-pE BRBRAFE ERER 58 B8 TEEH
Kingston Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000,000 100% = 100%  Dealing and advising
EHNEERERAA BE 2,000,000,000 7 in securities
EHRHRERA
R
Kingston Futures Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% - 100%  Dealing in futures
SNEHEERAF BB 15,000,0007 7 contracts
HERHNRS
Kingston Corporate Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of corporate
Finance Limited B 11,000,000/ 7T finance advisory
ENERBERBRAA services
BRI ETBRER
R
Kingston Asset Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% = 100%  Provision of asset
Management Limited B 5,000,000 7T management
ENEEEEEARAR services
REBEERRS
Canada United Canada CAD50,000,100 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Potash Limited JIEYN 50,000,100 17T RERK
g Company operates principally in Hong Kong instead of in their & FELBBEMIREBEZAME T KT

respective places of incorporation/establishment.

Company operates principally in Macau instead of in their

respective places of incorporation/establishment.

* Golden 28 Club and Golden Times Club are registered in
Macau as an individual enterprise in the name of Mrs. Chu

Yuet Wah
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 NEEL¥E RS
2014 20118
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investment cost B KA 1,281 1,716
Capital injection B 5 -
Share of result of jointly-controlled entities &1 1k 112 & F 52 2£ 45 (1,262) (435)
Share of net assets EIhEEFE 24 1,281
Details of the joint ventures are as follows: BEDEZHBNT :
Percentage

of ownership
interests/voting

rights/profit share
Form of Place of BERERER
business structure incorporation Principal activity = RZ# 2657
Name £ 78 EBEBERX 11 B 3L itk B TEEK BA
Kingston/SBI Credence Limited* Limited liability company ~ Cayman Islands  Investment holding ~ 50%
BEREEAT HEHS REER
KINGSBI Investment Management  Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong Investment advisory  50%
Limited BREERT Bt KREEM
Kingston/SBI Credence Fund, L.P.* Limited partnership Cayman Islands  Offshore fund 50%
BRABLE HEHS HEES
* Deregistered/dissolved during the year ended 31 March 2014. * HBEr—_ZF—mF=A=+—HIFFEEH
SEEEML AL
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22 REELE R
2014 2013
—E-NF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Total assets BEMBE 50 2,669
Total liabilities BEHERE 2 107
Net assets BEFE 48 2,562
The Group’s share of net assets of rEBEGEEEEFEEEFRE
joint ventures 24 1,281
Revenue ek - =
Other income H AU A 918 2
Administrative expenses THAX (3,447) (872)
Loss before income tax BRETS TR 1E (2,529) (870)
Income tax FriSHi 5 -
Loss after income tax KRETIS T2 1R (2,524) (870)
The Group’s share of loss of REEEGEE S EEBE
joint ventures (1,262) (435)
INVENTORIES 23 FE
2014 2013
—E—MEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Food and beverage and hotel operating Bin M EREA MBS &% B M
supplies 2,996 2,942

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

24

25

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

24 TEHHERE

2014 2013

—E-NF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHxT T

Investment funds, at fair value KEES  BAYE 1,387 4,895

The available-for-sale investments are denominated in United
States dollars and there is no public market for the
investments.

The fair value is based on net asset value of the investment
funds at the end of the reporting period. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, a deficit arising on change in fair
value of approximately HK$517,000 (2013: surplus of
HK$323,000) was recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve.

TRADING SECURITIES

At EREUETTFHE - ZRELELFH
I o

A EZREERSIRRERR 2 BEFER
H-HE_ZT—NMF=A=+—HILFE -
N EEEEEEALS517,0008 T (=
— =4 : Bfr323,000/87T) ' EREMEE
W ATER - WG E E (L HEERE ©

25 R5®EHF

2014 2013
—E—-mE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM 2RAZS - wmE
at market value 48,692 50,121

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

BRAFEFABSREMEZARAZSRE
EXTEEHONGABRREMEEER
REER
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26 LOAN RECEIVABLE 26 FEWER
2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FET
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMWA—H 406,827 414,820
Exchange loss charged to statement BEmkEMEE
of profit or loss and other BaRRMRZ
comprehensive income & 5 EiE (6,168) (7,993)
Transfer to intangible assets held ERERENE
for sale (note 31) EREE (MEE31) (400,659) =
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE—NE=A=+—H - 406,827

130

Loan receivable represented advances to Affluent Public
Limited, an independent third party (the “Borrower”). On 20
September 2010, the Group and the Borrower entered into
the loan agreement to which the Group agreed to make
available to the Borrower the term loan facility up to a
principal amount of CAD50 million. The loan was secured by
legal charge on the entire shares in the Borrower and entire
interests of the Borrower in a company incorporated under
the laws of the Province of British Columbia, Canada
(“Company A”), and personal guarantees executed by all
directors of the Borrower. The loan bore an effective interest
of 13% per annum and should be repayable in 6 months from
the date of advance.

In connection with the Loan, the Group was granted the
option, exercisable within six months from the date of
drawdown, to either (i) subscribe for shares in the Borrower
representing 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Borrower (on a fully diluted basis) at the time of such
subscription, or (ii) to purchase from the Borrower, shares of
Company A, representing approximately 18.89% of the total
issued share capital of Company A (on a fully diluted basis)
at the time of such purchase, at the option purchase price of
CADB80 million. Once (i) the Borrower has subscribed for
approximately 75.56% interest in the Company A which in
turn will acquire 90% interest in a company incorporated in
Canada; and (ii) the option is exercised, the Group will have
an indirect attributable interest of approximately 17% in 34
subsurface mineral permits for exploration of potash in
Saskatchewan, Canada. The option has expired on 20 March
2011.
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26

27

LOAN RECE'VABLE (continued)

Since the Borrower failed to subscribe for the shares of
Company A, in December 2010, the Group commenced legal
proceedings in Canada against the Borrower and its relevant
parties with a view to recovering the funds advanced.

On 1 June 2013, the Group and the Defendant Group
entered into a Settlement Agreement. The Defendants group
transferred 15 subsurface mineral permits to Canada United
Potash Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Province of Saskatchewan (“SubCo”) and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Defendant Group. On 7 June 2013, the
Defendants transferred the SubCo Shares to the Group. The
Group filed the Consent Dismissal Order to the Court.
Accordingly, the loan is cancelled and the Group becomes
the legal owner of the 15 subsurface permits as disclosed in
note 31.

The Group granted the right to the Defendant Group to
purchase all the SubCo Shares or all the shares of the
subsidiary of the Group which holds the 15 subsurface
mineral permits at an exercise price of CAD82 million net of
any Liability during a period which should commence
immediately after the SubCo Shares Transfer and expire 180
days from the Closing Date, being 7 June 2013. The right
lapsed on 5 December 2013.

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN
FINANCING

26 EWER®

HRERARERBRRAZED R-F
—ZE+_F  AKREENEREERAR
HARA T REAZFDENERNZES °

R-ZT—=FA—0 AEEEFEED
5] MR 7% o #% 5 B E M Canada United
Potash Limited ([SubCo | » 1R 1% iEHT 1R BUR
BREFEMKZZ A8 AREE 22BN
BAR)EEISMDM TRENAIE R
—=F X NAtH WEBEMAEEHEE
SubCo &3 - NEBE AR IERBE % -
EE - NI FES TR EE - ERE &
MAEBRKABI5MH NMEEFA & ZE A
BEHA -

AEBEF T HEE#EF - Al R EE SubCo
BpEREFARER S 7K B E#EsH 180 B
(BI=Z=—=F/,"A+tH) LEER - 17
{&82,000,000 11 7T ($0BR ] B 15 ) §E B AT
BSubCor ek AL B —RKT B AR (K
E 15t NREFAIE) ZFERD - BF
BAER - ZT—=F+_ARBKK-

27 AFEFENREEHE

2014 2013
—E-E —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Directors of subsidiaries and WBARZEERHEBBAL
their associates 119,719 270,289
Other margin clients EmREEEF 9,026,700 6,032,185
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt o REREME (12,647) (23,430)
9,133,772 6,279,044
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132

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN
FlNANClNG (continued)

The movements in impairment loss on advances to customers

EEFBNRESHME @

AT RRERNERHE 2 AFEPREMRESR

in margin financing, all assessed individually, are as follows: B &R A EiE s
2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET BT
At the beginning of the year F1] 23,430 23,430
Impairment loss recognised BRI AR R 5,302 -
Impairment loss reversed B EIREESE (16,085) -
At the end of the year FIR 12,647 23,430

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable on
demand and carry interest at approximately Hong Kong
Dollar Prime rate plus 3%. Margin clients are required to
pledge securities collateral to the Group in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading. The amount of credit
facilities granted to them is determined by the discounted
value of securities accepted by the Group. At 31 March
2014, total market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loan to margin clients was approximately
HK$46,030,036,000 (2013: HK$24,582,215,000).

No aging analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
securities dealings and margin financing.
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28 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28 E 5 RHMEWRMN
The Group The Company
F5E NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mFE  —F-=F —¥-mFE —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET THERT THT

Trade receivables from financial R E &R RS D4R

services segments S EWBRTN 29,706 27,504 - -
Trade receivables from hotel and %K B8 & K EY 2482
gaming segments Z 5 MR 125,555 63,724 - -
Other receivables, deposits and ~ EfhEUWERZ  5]& K&
prepayments B 33,252 38,365 7,810 7,706
188,513 129,593 7,810 7,706
Trade receivables from financial services RESRBRESEZE Z KRR
segments
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Accounts receivable arising from BHERSHBEEBBIREEEZ
the ordinary course of business of FEURBR K -
dealing in securities:
Cash clients RWERP 10,964 18,544
Clearing House LEE AT 6,803 =
Brokers and dealers KERR 5 29 26
Accounts receivable arising from EEHEAHNBEERERAREEZ
the ordinary course of business of FEUBR K -
dealing in futures contracts:
Clearing house HEEFT 10,184 7,539
Accounts receivable arising from REUTSIEABESBIEEE 2
the ordinary course of business of FEUTER X
provision of:
Corporate finance advisory services 1 2 B 75 R 1 AR 755 1,726 1,395
29,706 27,504
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables from financial services
segments (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts receivable attributable to
dealing in securities are two days after trade date, and those
of accounts receivable attributable to dealing in futures are
one day after the trade date. All accounts receivable from
cash clients are not past due at the reporting dates for which
the management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers, dealers
and corporate finance clients are current.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
receivable in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly monitored by management.

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30
days to its customers. The following is an aging analysis of
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period:

28 BEFREMEWERR @

REEBBED E 2B EVRERK
(%)

EHFRX B RERBRHRANRZ 5 AHER®A
WER - ME B RS EARKERFRANZARR
AR —BREN - FERETFZEK
RN RE Ay EAY  EEERRE - &
REEEBRUWEEAES - AABARIDE
BRI 2B D - BB ZABLIL F S ERET IR
B8 -

EWHEEFT - 858 ROBREERERP
ZERRBENEAMEE o

AEEREPRAERHRE - AEEBE N
REEHHARERERWERNR - BRI EER
BRERE BEETHERENER

REBERBEIBEZEZERE
£
REE—RETEFORZ FHREES -
AT B 5 8 W BR SRR 4R EA R 2 R B
A7 -

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
0-30 days 0230H 95,325 48,797
31-60 days 31£60H 25,527 14,042
61-90 days 61£290H 1,519 590
Over 90 days 90HM £ 26,568 23,679
148,939 87,108
Allowance for doubtful debt RERE A (23,384) (23,384)
125,555 63,724
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28 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 28

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments (continued)

The movements of impairment loss on trade receivables of
the hotel and gaming segments are as follows:

EII BEEREYSE
E4C)
BIERIEESEZE S REKERFURERSEZ
EEIT

The Group
rEH

2014 2013

—E-ImF —T—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THT

At beginning of the year REFEH) 23,384 23,869

Impairment loss reversed B EREEE - (485)

At end of the year MEFELR 23,384 23,384

The Group
rEH

2014 2013

—E-mF —T=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET BT

Neither past due nor impaired I 4% 480 B SR (B 95,325 48,797
Past due but not impaired: R EERE :

Less than 1 month past due BHL @A 25,527 14,042

1 to 3 months past due #H1 =3 @A 4,703 885

30,230 14,927

125,555 63,724

The balances which are past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers who have a good track record with the
Group, or are active during the year.

ERMEERECEHRESREREEER
RSN FRERZEFP AR -

The balances of other classes within trade and other RAEBE RARR 2B 5 K& E M ERERRA
receivables of the Group and of the Company are neither Z BB R AR Ea B S RE - ZE SR

past due nor impaired. They comprise other receivables
which are currently aged, and receivables from related
companies and group companies which are active during
the year. Management considers that these related parties
have sufficient financial capacities to repay.

The balances of other classes within trade and other

BIER M EABEEER - L RKEFAEE
IS8 2 B A R REENE 2 A2
AR - EEERA - KEMEHE R
BB B R -

AL 2 B 5 K H A RIS - ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ

receivables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired. ZERITEAHEHE  BEEERE 25
Management considers that the credit risk associated with EWEER 2 HAEERBREE -
these receivables is minimal.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its
normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as cash and bank balances held on behalf of
customers under the current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding accounts payable (note 32) to respective
clients on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash held on behalf
of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

29 REFFAZREERBRITAL

AEERRBARBRRIBIULERRP - UF
ER—REBBETELZIEPIEA - AL
B ER P RBDEREAMBIREKD
RBEERTREFPHEZRE RIRITH
B WRBE BT P 3R Z EA R K
Ra EREZER - BRAREZ ENARK (K
i32)  KEFPHACHEXBEF MR K
IR TR ' (BPIR) R AIFTR S &
HE -

30 RERREFEHER

The Group The Company
S 3L AH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF =% —E-ImE =%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET THERT THAT
Time deposits EHER 58,188 28,863 18,163 =
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 152,673 159,239 17,751 21,673
Cash and cash equivalents in RS EMRRRZ
the consolidated statement of HeRBESEEIER
financial position 210,861 188,102 35,914 21,673

Cash at banks and cash held in a securities account
maintained in a securities company earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits
during the year are made for varying period of between 1
day and 3 months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at respective
short term time deposits rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalent approximate to their fair value.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

31 FFEHEEFEE

HK$°000
Cost BN THERT
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FMA—H -
Additions in year FRRNE 423,100
Impairment loss BEEE (74,741)
Exchange realignment ME 8 B (25,674)
At 31 March 2014 R-EBE-—NE=A=+—H 322,685

The intangible assets held for sale represented the costs of
the 15 subsurface mineral permits acquired as part of the
settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with the
borrower of a loan receivable. The settlement was completed
on 7 June 2013 (the “Closing Date”).

The permits are granted by the Saskatchewan Ministry of
Energy and Resources, currently known as the Ministry of the
Economy of Saskatchewan, in 2008 to prospect for
subsurface minerals in mining Elk Point, Saskatchewan,
Canada with area of approximately 3,989.95 square
kilometers.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the borrower shall
have the right to purchase all the permits by unilateral written
notice to the Group at an exercise price of CAD82,000,000
net of any liability within 180 days from the Closing Date. The
right lapsed on 5 December 2013.

The permits are presented as intangible assets held for sale
following the intention of the Group’s management to dispose
of these permits. It is expected that the permits will be sold
within twelve months from the date of classification.

FFLEBTEERFESRBIREFRERA
PRI AR 17552 ([ AR 1752 |) — BB 0 FREIS
15174 MR BN IRAT R R 2 AR » FIAEI —
T-=FRALB(EHLBH] K -

i 2T W BUR A AR B2 & TR 20 (3R T8 i Hr s
BEEEL) N ST NERHFAE A
SRR NS RERRBURE Ek Point EE
#73,989.95F 7 A E 2 #h THEEE ©

IRIEFEE e - (XA BB 8L A AEET
180 AE T EAAEEZELEEBA @ 1%
178 {8 82,000,000 10 7t (FOBRER & B ) B8
BEFfBZAE - BEENR = —=F1+=
BREBKK -

EAEEEEERTERLELSARE
% AEFFAIERZ2IRFIFHERETE
E - MR EFAIERRN D BRIt +=
EAREL -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 5 the intangible assets held for
sale have been written down to their fair value less costs to
sell of HK$322,685,000. This is a non-recurring fair value
measurement.

An impairment loss of HK$74,741,000 has been recognised
on the measurement of the intangible assets held for sale to
fair value less costs to sell, mainly due to decline in mineral
price.

The valuations of intangible assets held for sale were carried
out by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer who
holds recognised and relevant professional qualifications
and has recent experience in the location and category of
the intangible assets held for sale being valued.

The fair value less costs to sell of the intangible assets held
for sale as at 31 March 2014 is measured using in-situ
resource method under the market-based approach. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the intangible assets held for sale are based on the
independent professional valuer’s best estimate.

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

Expected ore tonnage (million tonnes) 4,906-7,520
Mining and processing recovery 55%-85%
Total discount on the price multiple 40%

The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
expected ore tonnage, and mining and processing recovery
while it is negatively correlated to total discount on the price
multiple.
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31 FHEHEEFREE

BIEBBHIERELERFESH  FIEHEE
FEEEMBREHEAFERLE KN
322,685,00078 7T ° It JY IEE T 1A FE5

=
= °

FTEARBEEER TR ErE2FENEE
B EZ AFERHE K AR SRR EE
874,741,000 7T °

FELEBVEEZ MERBLEEMES
KA BRAREETT - AR RAAR
BEER  YHALERELEETLEEZ
Mo MIERI BB A ERR -

R-ZF-—MOF=ZA=+—8 HELEET
BEZ A HEREEKRARTERTISEAT
ZREREFE - BESERFELERET
BEATEZEELBERDENB L ERMG
Ef SEME

PARTTDEZERTABRGABENT

TEErEAmA (B &) 4,906 £ 7,520
4R RN T [E Y = 55% Z= 85%
BIREE TS 40%

N HER B RIBF RO BRI KRR Mo T
Bl = 2 L RR - MERERER A=
A2REBER -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the
expected ore tonnage by 1% would have affect the Group’s
profit by increase/decrease HK$3,220,000.

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the mining
and processing recovery by 1% would increase the Group’s
profit by HK$9,720,000/decrease by HK$9,580,000
respectively.

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the total
discount on the price multiple by 1% would have affect the
Group'’s profit by decrease/increase HK$5,370,000.

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair
value measurements are the same as disclosed above.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the
year.

32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31

BFEEEEFEE®

R-ZZE—NF=A=+—H ' F:tFraEfM
HEE  BEAREAMAIE N, H 1%
AN [E3% IS4 0, R 4> 3,220,000 78 7T e

R-Z—NF=A=1+—H  EtFaHMt
BEAE  FERNTEKE -/ TE
1%+ A& B @ A 1% 9 Bl # 409,720,000 7%
7T,/ 4> 9,580,000 7 °

Eé:%‘i—mizﬂ =+—B8  f&EtraEMs
BEAAE EREHEITELA TR
1% » NEBE i 418 505,370,000 74
o

E=MATENBERZ FNEHE L B
BEIER -
F P (i R T 3 SR ) o

32 BEFZRHMEMRNK

The Group The Company
rEE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF —B-=F —E-[mEF =%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THAT THET THT
Trade payables from financial RESRRBEOEZ
services segments B SRR 1,760,004 778,769 - =
Trade payables from hotel and R EEE REXHE 2
gaming segments B S e IR 30,053 17,095 - =
Other payable and accruals H R R
T EM 73,017 76,218 2,562 13,068
1,863,074 872,082 2,562 13,068
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32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 32 ESREMEMNER®
Trade payables from financial services RESEBRBESEZE S EMERX
segments
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT FET
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary B%% 5 B E2£KBIREE
course of business of dealing FETERAK ¢
in securities:
Cash clients RegpP 232,129 330,128
Margin clients RBESEP 1,509,127 416,185
1,741,256 746,313
Dividend payable to clients EREPRE - 2
Clearing house HEEE - 15,783
Brokers and dealers BERZFHE - 1
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary BEHIEANE BEKBREEL Y
course of business of dealing in futures FEERER :
contracts:
Clients zE 16,763 15,352
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary 124tIA F&IEH B E£/BEEE Y
course of business of provision of: FERTBRK -
Corporate finance advisory services 1 25 B 765 A Rl AR 765 46 13
Assets management services BESERS 1,939 1,305
1,760,004 778,769
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32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 32 ESREMEMEKRR®

Trade payables from financial services
segments (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts payable attributable to
dealing in securities are two days after the trade date, and
those of accounts payable attributable to dealing in futures
are one day after trade date.

No aging analysis is disclosed for payables to margin clients
as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging analysis is not
meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealings and margin financing.

As at the 31 March 2014, included in accounts payable was
an amount of HK$1,651,393,000 (2013: HK$731,306,000)
payable to clients and other institutions in respect of trust
and segregated bank balances received and held for clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of
regulated activities.

Trade payables from hotel and gaming
segments

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:

ma%&m%a%zgzﬁﬁﬁm
] )
BEHRSEERNERERRSBERER
s MK EERGRTRRARZ S B
t&— B RMELT -

—~

\I]]]

EERR ENEFRIMRBEREZE
BHE RO ML EER  RABRES
BARNRESEPRIAZRE DN -

RZZE—MF=A=+—H  ENEREREE
FES = P R E i i 18 BR 5% 1,651,393,000 78
T(ZZ— =% :731,306,000/87T) * &
RETZRAEFERIEPRE S REMEE
B K358 2 (2t R B SRAIT4E 4 o

REE?&@%DEZE%@ﬁE
z-A
NTREGEMNEINREARZERRD
-

The Group
EE

2014 2013
—E—IF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
0-30 days 02 30H 14,158 12,251
31-60 days 31£260H 13,159 4,484
61-90 days 61£290H 1,440 208
Over 90 days 90 H AL 1,296 152
30,053 17,095
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33 AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

34

142

33 EBNRRMRE

The Group REE
2014 2013
—E & —E—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat THET FHET
Active Dynamic Limited Active Dynamic Limited (a) 147,111 471,111
Better Sino Limited EEBRAR (a) 1,190,000 1,190,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah TREL T (b) 1,510,000 =
2,847,111 1,661,111

The Company AT
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
et FET TET
Better Sino Limited EBEBRAR (a) 900,000 900,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah ZHERZL (b) 1,510,000 =
2,410,000 900,000
(a) The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and (a) BEARBEATTE  BEEBLERE

repayable on demand. SKIEE o

On 31 March 2014, Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and the Group
entered into a loan agreement of HK$1,010,000,000 for
settlement of promissory notes as disclosed in note 37.
The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 2%
per annum and repayable on the third anniversary of
drawdown (i.e. on or before 30 March 2017). This loan
is subject to review at anytime and to the lender’s
overriding right of withdrawal and immediate repayment
on demand. The remaining balance of HK$500,000,000
is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 3% and
repayable on demand.

LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The loan is due to Kingston Finance Limited which has
common directors and shareholders with the Group. The loan
is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 1.5% per annum
and repayable on demand.
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R-ZE—MNFE=A=+—8  #HakHt
FESTFTHEE - = AEL TEAEER]
37 /% £11,010,000,00078 7T 2 & &
o UNENARLRE  EEERAE
IR - DAFEFIR2[EFTE RN IRRIEE
—RAFEIZE—+tF=A=+Hz%kx
B EE - ZE R BER R - WXR
REFRARDERRNFEERE K2
&R EHER) o $2%8 500,000,000 7T Al
REERWT  UFEMNEIEFENERE
SKAEE o
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36

SUBORDINATED LOANS 35 BEEN
Draw date Expiry date Terms 2014 2013
RERE A JEw B 5 R —E-NEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Loan from Mr. Lee Wai Man 30 Jan 2004 N/A P+1% 250,000 250,000
KEFEXEEZER —ERF NER HEENX
—A=+H b1 E
20 Feb 2004 N/A 1.5% 150,000 150,000
—ZTTF i 1.5E
—RA=+H
Revolving loan from 24 May 2010 2 May 2014~ 1.5% 300,000 300,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah —T-TF —T—mE 152
REFAELLZRRER HEA=-+MA HA=-A*
700,000 700,000

*

Subsequently renewed to 2 May 2016

The subordinated loans of the Group are interest bearing,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

* HpEgs—F—NFnA—H

AEE T BEERATE  EERRARE

BANK LOANS 36 MITER
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Bank loans, secured and repayable IRITER - BEEREAER
within one year —FREERE 1,324,000 150,000

The bank loans of the Group were secured by marketable
securities of HK$7,465,202,000 (2013: HK$6,563,506,000)
pledged to the Group by margin clients. The bank loans of
the Group bear floating interest rates ranging from 0.8% to
1.09% per annum (2013: 0.82% to 1%).

AEBZRITERUREEEPEF TR
E B2 BEEA7,465,202,0008 (= =Z
— =4 : 6,563,506,000 7 7T ) {EHEIR o ANE
B2 RITEFIRZBFEFENT0.8FZE1.09
B(ZZE—=%:082EZ1E):t8 -
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PROMISSORY NOTES

On 1 April 2011, the Company issued promissory notes with
a principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 as part of the
consideration to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Kingston Capital Asia Limited. The promissory notes were
unsecured, bear interest at 2% per annum and matured at
the third anniversary from the date of issue, being 31 March
2014. On 31 March 2014, Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and the Group
entered into a loan agreement of HK$1,010,000,000 to

37

AHLEE

R_FE——FWNA—H  AREBTAELHE
#%1,000,000,000% 7T 2 % 5 21 - ERIK
f% Kingston Capital Asia Limited 282 21T
AR Z KREBEPED - AN EH AEER -
REFER2ELTE - WEREITHPRESE
—REERAIZE—mEF=A=+—H)%F
HeRN_F—NNF=F=1+—8 ' HAWki=
BT TRAELRTHASEFLAE

finance the settlement of promissory notes as disclosed in 1,010,000,0008 7T 2 E R H ik » SLE &
note 33. HEREE o

2014 2013

—E-MF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAT

At initial recognition HFHER 890,358 890,358

Imputed finance cost HEE g & R AR 169,642 110,842

Interest paid BFE (50,000) (40,000)

Repayment B (1,010,000) -

- 961,200

The fair value assessment of the Promissory Notes (“PN”)
was carried out by AA Property Services Limited, an
independent professional valuer. The basis for determining
the fair value of PN at HK$890,358,000 at the date of
completion of the above-said acquisition was as follows:

The fair value of the PN was estimated by using discounted
cash flow method.

Interest Rate: For the financial ratios of the Company as at
the date of completion, the interest rates of Standard and
Poor’s “A” and “BB” rated seasoned corporate bonds quoted
from Bloomberg were adopted.

Risk Free Rate: The PN were denominated in HK Dollars. The
risk free rate was determined by making reference to the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with similar maturity term
quoted from Bloomberg.

Terms and Conditions: The face value and coupon rate of the
PN and other relevant terms and terms were considered.

Discount Rate Calculation: (i) Discount Rate = 5.191%-

6.154%; (ii) Spot Interest Rate = 0.237%-1.20%; (iii) Other
Spread (Average) = 4.054%; (iv) Country Risk = 0.9%.
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39

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employee are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 up to 31 May 2012 and
HK$25,000 from 1 June 2012 onwards. Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau were
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Group was required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme was to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme (the “2004
Scheme”) which was adopted on 7 June 2004 whereby the
directors of the Company may, at their discretion, select
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group to take up options at HK$1 per grant to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2004 Scheme must not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

38

39

EEENKER

REERBERBAHEABES T ENER A
BB RBENZEZEI20EBFEATES
HEI([REEETEl]) - RES T El A TR M
SORRETE] - BB EEATE - BiRRTE
T E - BEEXEREEESBEZEERHAK
A5% AEFEEL R - T ABBEKRA L
R —Z——F A A =+—HE7i1420,000
Bt ME—ZE——FxA—HRELRAA
25,0008 7T ° [AIFTSIEL 2 KBNS RB o

AEEE TR E QR 2 &85 RRPIR
fFEE s BREERABNEZ28% -
AREBAREMANFEZET B D LRENR
BT B - REBE A R RERE S
ZME—BERRBEZETEEL R -

URBRERS T 25
ARFR-FENEA B+ B RBBRIES
B(-TTOFHE)  Hit AARES
AMESES EE U FHBRE 1B TEM
ARBAD TR 2 BRI - (ERHH AR
e BB BRI EI -

BRE_STMEFEREMARTERZAE
BREETERR TRITZRNDAR - 75
HBTER B ETRN Z30% « REUSA LA
PRER = Sttt /BT - MEMR + — B A A RE
EAMEAR L EREmS RBROHEE - ~F
HBAR AR EAREEETRNZ 1% -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 39 U@ AERINZRE @
(continued)
Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant AR A BB IS I H H e B R AR A 3|
of the share option to the date of expiry of the option or in HiH |- EARIRERE 1 T(E - SR IBE ST F T
accordance with the terms of the 2004 Scheme at any time 7 IEFRESE A AR A Z BE AR
during a period to be notified by board of directors to each BTE - fTEBRARNEEETE ' T2
grantee. The exercise price is determined by the directors of BRATEEBEZESE : ()ANA ARG RE
the Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the H BB ZUTHE ¢ (i) D R B H B 2T
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, RAESER 2 FHWHE  R(i)RHEE -
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.
Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2013 AR AEREZTEREMR_E—=F=4
which have been granted under the Scheme are as follows: =T+ —BRARTRZ BREFS
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
Balance at for the for the for the for the
Exercise 1April  yearended  yearended yearended yearended  Balance at
Name or category of price 2012 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period (adjusted) (adjusted) 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
S B2 a8z 1
“§-=§ C-E--f C—®-=fF C—E-=F
W-8--% =B=+-B Z=ZA=+-H ZA=+-H =ZA=t-H MH=F-=
mMA-H LEER LEER LEER ILEER =A=1-A
SEERLAER  RAAH (igid: i 2t & i i 3 i
Director:
g2
Mrs. Chu YuetWah — 2/2/2010 2/2/2010to 1/2/2013 HK$0.822/8 7T 6,080,000 = - - (6,080,000) -
FRERL “Z-TF-F-R -T-TF-f-pZ
“%-=F2f-f
Consultants 3/6/2009 3/6/2009 to 2/6/2012 HK$0.312/87T 71,237,772 - (71,236,000) - (1,772) -
Ef ZEENERAZH ZEENEAAZAHE
“2-—%5AZH
11/8/2009 11/8/2009 to 10/8/2012 HK$0.43757C 177,266,476 - - - (177,266 476) -
ZZSNENRT-R ZTShENRT-AZE
“2-——£)\AtH
2/2/2010 2/2/20100 1/2/2013 HK$0.822/8 7T 197,503,000 - - - (197,503,000 -
Z2-TECACR -T-TE_ACHE
“%-=F2f-f
Staff 2122010 2/2/2010 to 1/2/2013 HK$0.822/8 7T 11,675,000 - - (1,000,000)  (10,675,000) -
€& Z2-TECACR -T-TE_ACHE
“2-=%¥_f-H
463,762,248 - (712360000 (1,000,000 (391526,248) -
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 39 LURGEBERIF2RI @

(continued)

Share options granted to directors

The estimated fair value of the options granted to directors
on 2 February 2010 was HK$0.1225 per option. The fair value
was calculated using the Trinomial pricing model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price InREFIE (B
Exercise price 1IEE
Expected volatility LY
Expected life TEHA4F 5

Risk-free rate

8 [ g V) =R

Expected dividend yield FE HARG B &

No vesting conditions is set for directors. The fair value of
share options grant to directors is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity at the date of grant.

Share options granted to staff

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 3 June
2009 was HK$0.0437 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Trinomial pricing model. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price IR H A E
Exercise price I E
Expected volatility SN
Expected life TEHASE R

Risk-free rate

BRI =R

Expected dividend yield T8 HARG 5. X

The estimated fair value of the options granted to staff on 2
February 2010 was HK$0.1422 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Trinomial pricing model. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price RIS E

Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected life
Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

1T1E(E
JEHK 18
BHFH
B A=
R B R

MESRHZBERE
R-ZE—ZF_A_HRESMELERE
ZEAAFEAENERE012258TT - A
FEDR=ZBAAEEEAFE - BREFTER
AZBARELT :

HK$0.414 77T
HK$0.411 77T
82.629%

1 year &
0.255%
2.414%

BEREERTHBAET  ETEE MR
W2 ATEDREBARIRA - MRS N
B BER (T 2 B TR R L A BB
$#90 -

mMETRHZERE
R-ZBEAENA=ZAFREBRE (G5
N EAEHERE0.0437E T - AFETD
R=EATEBERTE - BETEER 2 &
ABIERAT :

HK$0.15378 7T
HK$0.156 78 7T
66.827%

1.5 years &
0.911%
4.334%

R-Z—TF - A - HRAE IR ERE
2 AFEASHERE 14225 - A
FEDEZEACEERENE - E@TEE
NZBEABIRT ¢

HK$0.414 7T
HK$0.411 7T

73.33% to £ 82.63%
0.496 to =2.918 years
0.210% to £20.976%
2.405% to £ 4.868%
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Share options granted to staff (continued)
The share options granted on 3 June 2009 to staff are subject

to the following vesting schedule:

39 URGBABEBRINZRFZ @

METRHZERE®®
R-ZEBEENFNA=HRTEIZERESR
X5 5F B B PR AR BR

Maximum number
of share options

Vesting schedule exercisable

AI{TEERAE 2
B HR BAEAE
From 3 December 2009 to 2 June 2010 —ZEZNF+_-_A=HZEZ_ZT—ZFTFHA_H 20%
From 3 June 2010 to 2 December 2010 —ZE—ZFXA=ZHE2-_ZT—ZF+_-HF—H 35%
From 3 December 2010to 2 June 2011 —E—ZFF+_-_A=HEZ_F——F,xA=H 50%
From 3 June 2011 to 2 December 2011 —ZE——FXA=HEZ-_FT——F+_-A—H 65%
From 3 December 2011 to 2 March 2012 —E——F&+ - A=H&-_ZE——F=H—-H 80%
From 3 March 2012 to 2 June 2012 - —F=A=HZEZ-ZT——_HF,NA-H 100%
The share options granted on 2 February 2010 to staff are NZE—TF_A-_ARTEIERER

subject to the following vesting schedule:

ZT5RBMRARR

Maximum number
of share options

Vesting schedule exercisable

A{TREEREZ
55 B HA PR BAEHE
From 2 August 2010 to 1 February 2011 —ZE—ZFFN\A-_HE-_T——F_H—H 15%
From 2 February 2011 to 1 August2011 —E——F_-_A A& -_F——F A\ A—H 30%
From 2 August 2011 to 1 February 2012 —ZE——F )\ /A _HE-_ZE——_F_F—H 45%
From 2 February 2012 to 1 August 2012 —ZE——-—F -/ _-_HEZ_Z——_F/\A—H 60%
From 2 August 2012 to 1 January 2013 —ZE——F)\f_-_HE_Z—=F—HF—H 80%
From 2 January 2013 to 1 February 2013 —ZE—=F—/8 _H&Z -~ Z—=F " F—H 100%

BRTET2BREZAFEERRE TK

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity over
the relevant vesting periods.
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Share options granted to consultants
The estimated fair value of the options granted to consultants
on 11 August 2009 was HK$6,150,000.

39

The estimated fair values of the options granted to Group A
and Group B consultants on 2 February 2010 were
HK$8,610,000 and HK$3,690,000 respectively. No vesting
conditions is set for Group A consultants while the share
options granted to Group B consultants are subject to the
following vesting schedule:

URODBERTNZRS @)

HEHE&Z@&E
—EENEN\A+—HBERFE L ER
$f2£z1aa+ﬁ¥fﬁz%6,15o,ooo,an o

R-EBE—FF - A AR TFFEARHARERM
2 g E 2 5T A FE S R A8,610,0008
7T % 3,690,000 % 7T © 1 #8 3t 48 BA M 5% &
FEKG METOABMZEREAST
7|55 8 EAPR AR IR

Maximum number
of share options

Vesting schedule exercisable

A{TEEREZ
=R HR BAEE
From 2 August 2010 to 1 February 2011 —ZE—ZFF\A-_HE-_Z——F_H—H 15%
From 2 February 2011 to 1 August 2011 —ZE——F -/ _HEZ_FT——F A\H—H 30%
From 2 August 2011 to 1 February 2012 —Z—— & \A_HEZ_ZT——4&_H—H 45%
From 2 February 2012to 1 August 2012 —EF——F#-_H-HE-_FT——-F/\H—H 60%
From 2 August 2012 to 1 January 2018 —Z——F ) \A-_HEZ-_Z—=F—H—H 80%
From 2 January 2013 to 1 February 2013 —Z—=F—HA _HZ-"Z—=F_H—H 100%
The fair value was calculated using the Market Approach, AHEDERATSEASE  WE2EMS L

reference has been made to the prices at which other
services of similar nature are agreed as available in the
market. In the process of valuing the share options, the
uniqueness of services provided by the consultants has been
taken into account. The consultant fee are computed based
on the number of working hours and the consultant fees to be
charged in the provision of the consultancy service together
with out-of-pocket expenses.

The fair value of share options granted to consultants is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income with corresponding increase in
share-based payment reserve within equity.

Because the Trinomial pricing model and Market Approach
require the input of highly substantive assumptions, including
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

OS2 AR TS < e B4 o fEaT{h i
fe#E 2 A2 - Bt RER TR ERSE 2B
It - BB T IRiR B AR <« TIER &K
NMEKEMREERESERFHE -

BETBEBREZ A FEN RS REMEE
BERTHER  MESTARD BERN
Z RIS AEREIE I o

AR =ZBAEBEARTZEAFLRER
R BREREKE RTIBERIXEHELF
BT AIREENEARE -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

A share-based payment expenses amounting to HK$494,000
has been recognised by the Company for the year ended 31
March 2013 in relation to share options granted by the
Company. There is no outstanding exercisable options as at
31 March 2014 and 2013. There is no weighted average
remaining contractual life of the outstanding options as at 31
March 2014 and 2013.

There is no weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise of the options during the year ended 31 March 2014
and 2013.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
August 2013, shareholders of the Company have approved
the termination of the 2004 Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”).

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the total numbers
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares
of the Company in issue on the date of adoption. The
Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’
approval provided that such renewal may not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options to be granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme
and all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company should not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue.
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39 URGBABEBRINZRFZ @

HE ===t = f=r—[g lc4EE 0 254
RIFLE R 2 BB R AR D BERE S
2 Y 54940008 c R=ZE—UF K=
T—Z=F=ZA=1+—8  BELHRTEER
Eo-RE—NFR_F—=F=ZA=1+—
B - BE & ARITERRE 2 INEFII RSB E
49 EARR ©

HE_Z-MNMER_T—=F=-A=+—H
IEFE - BEITE A B HA 2 i TR

Bé‘ﬁo

RIB-=F A +HBTZRRFRR
AFERE  RARBRREHELIE-TTN
FETE - WHRA— IR BAE S ([FREK
fEstall) -

RIEFT B AERT S - BITER R B ERT
B R AN B RN Z AT H A B A AT 233
ZFTBBIREmA TRITZRMDAE - &5
TMSEBA QR ARN B B2 E 2170
Z10% ° AN A B A] FE USRS/ N ERT It
10% [R5 - BB TSR BREIERE
HERBARRRBEBEITRG Z10% °

R E R B TROBERRITEZ
P A RITIE B RARIB AR B R 2 2]
Hip BT S REERRTEZRAR
TTERBIEREITER A TRITZ AR A RN
BE - TREETREETRMNZ30% °

FRIFNBR RS EA R AR E - MEM
1218 A AR - EREH B IE B AR
ARAZ EMEBERET SR T &2 8E
2B (RRED TR RRTTE 2 B &
TERSETEETRITZARARNLE
2 TEBBARAREETHRMNZ1% -
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 39 LURGEBERIF2RI @

(continued)

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. The exercise of options may also be subject to
any conditions imposed by the Company at the time of offer.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company
on the date of grant. The subscription price will be approved
by the board of directors at the time the option is offered to
the participants.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company had no
share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme.

PR ARE TR Z BIRAS BAR BRI
FETE - A HIRMARE B RE B H#EE 10
FAEM - TEBREITAEZRRARQR]
RIRE BT E Z TR -

RIBRRETER K TRITZARRRNGR
BETSERNATESE : () AR ARMHR
B AHEB AT 28 A RERMRK
ME (i) ARBROVEREF L B 5 A (E
EEAEBEHARIAERAATEZE
BRERMARFHRTIE R (i) AR FRK
RELAHZEE RBEFREERN
SEERRBIRERRAE

BE-T-WEZAS+—AILER A2
AL 4R SR AR BRI R AT
{F + BSRAEREE §8 2 BRI
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DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year are as follows:

40 EIERIE
ER - REAHBRRERR Y EERBA
B/ (am)ARSHRESSHNT

Accelerated

tax Other Unused
depreciation assets tax losses Total
P73 KEA
BIEHE HthEE HIEEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 3 (120,379) 6,104 (114,272)
Charge to other B a2 ERAR
comprehensive income - (41,486) - (41,486)
Credit to consolidated STAGRABERRK
income statement - 3,195 - 3,195
At 31 March 2013 R-_Z—=F=A=+—H 3 (158,670) 6,104 (152,563)
Charge to other B H b2 E KA IR
comprehensive income - (66,098) - (66,098)
Credit to consolidated STALRABERR
income statement - 4,262 - 4,262
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF=A=1+—H 3 (220,506) 6,104 (214,399)
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40 DEFERRED TAXATION (continuea) 40 EFEFIIE )
At 31 March 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of R-ZZE—NF=A=+—H A&EERHAE
approximately HK$338,843,000 (2013: HK$331,876,000) M RARX BN Z2AE BB EEBEIE
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset #) £338,843,000/ ;o — & — = &F:
has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2014 in 331,876,000/ 7L) c & ZE = —WF = A
respect of HK$50,867,000 (2013: HK$50,867,000) of such —+—BLEFE ERBEEEBEEAES
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect 50,867,000/ ;L ( == — = 4 : 50,867,000
of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of BT IR ERIEE E - ERNEATE AR
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be AR AR - A E e T 2 TR ES B R
carried forward for a period of: REERIREE ° AERTIBEE RN T H
BEEEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
One year —&E 29,321 45,007
More than one year but —F A BT RBIBRE
not more than two years - 29,321
More than two years but MELA BT EA=F
not more than three years - -
Indefinitely PR 2A 258,655 206,681
287,976 281,009
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SHARE CAPITAL M RAE
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=4F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RFEE <58 erEgE! ]
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 SRMEE0.02/8 T
2 TR
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2013/2012 and R-_BE—=%/
31 March 2014/2013 —T——F
MA—A K
—E—pmE/
—E-=F
=A=+—H 24,750,000,000 495,000 24,750,000,000 495,000
Issued and fully paid: BRI RERIRA
At 1 April 2013/2012 R_T—=%/
—ET——FA—H 12,114,480,666 242,290 12,043,244,666 240,865
Issue of share pursuant to F1T{E AR RE BT TR (D
exercise of options - - 71,236,000 1,425
At 31 March 2014/2013 RZT—MF/
—E-=F
=A== 12,114,480,666 242,290 12,114,480,666 242,290
Non-redeemable convertible A HEE
preference shares AHRRE TR
Shares of HK$0.02 each FRMEE0.02/8 7T
Z &
Authorised, issued and EE C BEAK
fully paid: R -
At 1 April 2013/2012 and R_T—=%F/
31 March 2014/2013 —E——fF
MA—BA XK
—T-QmE/
—T-=F
=E == 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000
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41 SHARE CAP'TAL (continued)

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
The fair value assessment of the convertible preference
shares (“CPS”) was carried out by AA Property Services
Limited, an independent professional valuer. The basis for
determining the fair value of CPS at HK$2,395,106,000 at the
date of completion is as follows:

The fair value of the CPS is estimated by using Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model.

Risk Free Rate: The CPS are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. The risk free rate is determined by making reference
to the Exchange Fund Notes of comparable terms issued by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Terms and Conditions: The face value and coupon of the
CPS and other relevant terms and conditions are considered.

Conversion Options Calculation: (i) Stock Price = HK$1.05;
(ii) Exercise Price = HK$0.8; (iii) Risk Free Rate = 2.732%; (iv)
Expected Option Period = 10.005 Years; (v) Expected
Volatility = 87.825%; (vi) Option Type = Call; (vii) Expected
Dividend Yield = 0%.

Share options

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 71,236,000 new
shares of HK$0.02 each were issued pursuant to exercise of
share options at consideration of approximately
HK$22,227,000. No such share was issued in 2014 as all
share options were lapsed as at 31 March 2014.

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of subordinated
loans, loan from a related company, amounts due to
shareholders, bank loans, promissory notes and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
paid up capital/share capital and reserves. The directors of
the Group review the capital structure regularly. As part of
this review, the director considers the cost and the risks
associated with each class of the capital.

41

BR 2R ()

A EETRERELR

AR B IR ([ ATRARE L)) 2 A FERT
B RBEY EXEMEMREYEBRERA
RIHETT o B F A 202,395,106,00078 JT 2 7]
BRELEBRNREXNEB ZAFEZEEN
T

AR EER e A FETVERMB AR — &F
BHTHIRE E BAEAF L AR o

ERERA R - ARRE ST TY A TTRHE ©
ERBNX2EAEECHEERELY
BEAABRLBREGERZIMNEESBESMETE -

Rk B At BRT RATRRE Rz mE M
SR A K E A A B GRR B AR A -

ARSI E 0% ¢ () IR(E =1.0678 7T ¢ (i)
1718 B=0.8% st (i)E B & F R=
2.732% : (iv) TEEAEA#EF A= 10.005F : (v)
Y8 HAR 08 = 87.825% ; (vi) HARESE R = 3288
(vii) TE B B2 =0% ©

B RE

BHE-_ZT-—=F=A=t+—HItEE 2%
BRIBH 22,227,000 78 ST T B R A 31T
71,236,000 Ix & AR EIE 0.02 % 7T 2 #TAR (7
R-ZE—NF=A=+—H BRFEERK
TR M EN T —EEITE @R

T/'\ ®

EXEE

AEBEREEN BB BEERFEE
SR P - BRAKEE SRR AIRE
g2 ARRERERFEAZER -

AEBEZERNEBBRREENR K%
FERR CER  BABRRIEA  RITE
R ALRBRARRERTA ARGER
(BREFER /BARER) - AREE=
ERRAERERE - ERBBRTZ—
7 BEREREEERZRARFAHERR
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital Management (continued)

Based on the recommendation of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Net debts include amounts due to shareholders,
loan from a related company, bank loans, subordinated loans
and promissory notes, less cash and bank balances —
general accounts. The gearing ratio as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

41 BARw

BEAREE @
AEESREEECHEER  ZRRTR
B BT REBETHERSERIREE
7o e EE AL B EARERE -

AEBRAEEAGBH R (AEBFREKRA
REERANBIEREAR) EEER - B
FEEREMNERSA - RE—K@ERA
ZEF - RITER - REERPALRER
Re RBITHESE — —REP - RREHR
ZEEAGBLENT

2014 2013

—F-pmE T =%

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Net debts B %5 7,612,889 5,574,030
Total equity attributable to owners RREHEE NEIEER R

of the Company 15,881,791 14,813,577

Gearing ratio BEAGBHEE 0.48 0.38

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC.
Under the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of statutory floor
requirement or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever
is higher. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
regular basis and the Group has complied with those
requirements during the year.
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42 RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 62 of
the financial statements.

42 f#1E

AEBRAFER E—FEZRHEBEESBENRE
BEHORMBBRRFC2AZEAERED

RED -

Share Share-based Capital
premium Contributed payment redemption  Retained
Company account surplus reserve reserve  earnings Total
DRB A
HERZff E4ERME

LN RiVEEER  A9E&H ik e REEA st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TEL THEL FHT

At 1 April 2012 RZE——FNHA—B 11,712,945 69,332 36,759 466 205,453 12,024,955
Issue of share under share REEERIERT 23Rk 7

option scheme 27,035 - (6,233) - - 20,802

Share-based payment ARRMD B 7 % A - - 494 - = 494

Forfeiture of share options R R = = (31,020) = 31,020 =

Profit for the year ERET - - - - 215,367 215,367

Payment of dividends RS - - - - (173645)  (173,645)

At 31 March 2013 W-E-—=F=f=1+—H 11,739,980 69,332 - 466 278,195 12,087,973

At 1 April 2013 W-E—=FmA—H 11,739,980 69,332 - 466 278,195 12,087,973

Profit for the year FR - - - - 111,504 111,504

Payment of dividends AR S - - - - (173,645)  (173,645)

At 31 March 2014 RZZ-NE=A=1—-AH 11,739,980 69,332 - 466 216,054 12,025,832
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42 R ESE RVES (continued)

158

(a)

The share premium account represents the excess of
proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that (i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair
value of unexercised share options granted to directors,
employees and consultants of the Company recognised
in accordance with HKFRS 2. Details are set out in note
39.

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

The reserve available for distribution by the Company to the
shareholders as at 31 March 2014 is approximately
HK$285,386,000 (2013: HK$347,527,000).
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SRR MR

43 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 43 HEETHMEEHESHAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of financial instruments TREHA FHRE 2SR TE - A &HEIT
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements 2R ER A I P MR ek 2 FEIE o

and similar agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting
UFEEZERER
Related amounts not offset in the
statement of financial position

BERMBERRREEHBEHE
Gross amount
of recognised Net amount
financial of financial
liabilities offset assets
Gross amount inthe  presented in Financial
of recognised  statementof the statement  instruments
financial financial of financial other than Cash collateral
assets position position cash collateral received Net amount
RE#RRE  REBRRER  ReERE
ERISH  EHEER 2fzcR Bohz gkRe
EEfE <SRAELR EERE £RIA il B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THET THEL TiEx THET TEL
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—ME
=R=t+-H
Type of financial assets SRHEERR
Trade receivable REEEEEY
from HKSCC BHRWER 160,083 (153,280) 6,803 - - 6,803
At 31 March 2013 RIZ-=F
=A=t+-H
Type of financial assets SRAEER
Trade receivable REBELE L
from HKSCC B2 RUER 137,270 (137,270) = = = =
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43 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 43 BETMEERSMAE®
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting
IFEHz EREE
Related amounts not offset in the
statement of financial position

BERTBERRREEZHESE
Gross amount
of recognised ~ Net amount
financial of financial
assets offset liabilities
Gross amount inthe  presented in Financial
of recognised statement  the statement instruments
financial of financial of financial other than Cash collateral
liabilities position position cash collateral received Net amount
REBRRZR  REBREZR  REERR
BEZEH  EHERE 2hlzed Wz Rk
EE#E SREEAR aERE ¢RIA il BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TEL TAT THT
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-IEF
=A=t+-H
Type of financial liabilities SREERA
Trade payable REEBLE
from HKSCC B AENRR 153,280 (153,280) - - - -
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F
=A=1-A
Type of financial liabilties SRAGBER
Trade payable REBELEZ
from HKSCC ) AN 153,054 (137,271) 15,783 - - 15,783
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SRR MR

43 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
The tables below reconcile the amounts of trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables as presented in

43 EHTHMEEHSMEEw

TRERMEIRAKRMZINE 5 M EAMRER
RRARELE 5 R H A R AR BI85

the statement of financial position:

2014 2013
—ZT—MF —E—=%F
Trade and other receivables HK$’000 HK$'000
B2 Rk HMEWERR THET FET
Net amount of trade receivables REBBEEZESEI
from HKSCC RO RE 6,803 -
Trade and other receivables not PNER IR EEE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure Z 5 MhEmEWERR 181,710 129,593
Trade and other receivables WA RFTIE R 2
as disclosed in the statement B 5 N E b U AR K
of financial position 188,513 129,593
2014 2013
—E-QmF —F—=F
Trade and other payables HK$’000 HK$'000
B REMESIRR TET FET
Net amount of trade payable REBBEE 2 EFER
from HKSCC BRFFRE - 15,783
Trade and other payable not in the PEHRHKESHE 2
scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 N EMEMERR 1,863,074 856,299
Trade and other payable WA RFTIEE 2
as disclosed in the statement B 5N EMEIRK
of financial position 1,863,074 872,082
SFESRMEBMERAT =T UFFRK 161
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

44 BIEE M EE

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €I EER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the NFERH REEBRAATZES
Group and the Company’s financial assets and BEENBEZERENT -
liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:
The Group The Company
by N
2014 2013 2014 2013
~g-mE T =F —g-mE  ZT-=F%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEx THBL TERT TAT
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments AL ERE 1,387 4,895 - =
At fair value through profitorloss  RAF{ER AB
— Held-for-trading investments —BEEERE 48,692 50,121 - =
Loans and receivables BN EURER
— Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ — JEWB A RZIE - - 4,316,550 3,418,946
— Loan receivables — ERER - 406,827 - -
— Advances to customers in —RAEFPENRECHE
margin financing 9,133,772 6,279,044 - -
— Financial assets included in —FABSREMER
trade and other receivables B eREE 169,937 110,285 88 =
— Cash and cash equivalents — B4 RRSE(EER 1,862,254 919,408 35,914 21,673
11,165,963 7,715,564 4,352,552 3,440,619
11,216,042 7,770,580 4,352,552 3,440,619
Financial liabilities tEaRE
Financial liabilities measured REHRAE
at amortised cost JERBE
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — BB AR FIE - = 1,163,424 727,767
— Financial liabilities included — AR S RAMER
in trade and other payables ERZepat 1,805,702 810,640 - =
— Amounts due to Shareholders — EAREIE 2,847,111 1,661,111 2,410,000 900,000
— Loan from a related company —RBE—RBERRER 2,952,639 2,289,821 - =
— Subordinated loans —BEER 700,000 700,000 - -
— Bank loans — RITER 1,324,000 150,000 - =
— Promissory notes —EHEE - 961,200 - 961,200
9,629,452 6,572,772 3,573,424 2,588,967
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk.

(@)

44 BIEEBERE @
(b) BIEBREEEERBERK

AEEZXBARZHABBRR : T
SRk (BREELRRE - FREERRE
wER) EERARNRBEZER

Market risk (i) m™MEER
Foreign exchange risk b 57 2 e
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk REEASZZERTNREEME
arising from various currency exposures, primarily ECZERRR EEH KRBT
with respect to Australian Dollars (“AUD”), (MRl  ARE(TARE] -
Renminbi (“RMB”), United States Dollars (“USD”), Eox(fx=l) mgXx i
Canadian Dollars (“CAD"), and Singapore Dollars Tt ) RET s T ([#h ko l) -
(“SGD”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future fEHERKERREER S RE
commercial transactions and recognised assets BREEHBE -
and liabilities.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RikE B AEEUINEGHE
currency denominated financial assets and ZEMEERBEZEREAMEN
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: T
Liabilities Assets
=L BE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-F —F—= —E—mF T —=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT FTET FHETT
AUD BRIT 24 27 66 75
USD = 14 99 1,445 17,769
RMB AR 2,083 3,670 18,010 7,175
CAD mrc - - 406,827
SGD T 165 157 534 445

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD
and the net effects of AUD and SGD are low. The
Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB and CAD.

SHNESRMEBFRAF
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

164

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table indicates the approximately
change in the group’s profit and loss for the year

MEERERw
(b) BIEREEEERBE Mm@

() TEEREE
bE 57 JE B (48

TRINEAFEAREE 2 K

EEEEES

2 4 B) (R

in response to reasonably possible changes in BRREBEASTEANRERE) M
the foreign exchange rates to which the group EEZBROEE -
has significant exposure at the reporting date.
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange after tax exchange after tax
rates for the year rates for the year
FRB®RBE FRRDIE
EzLEH BRI, X EFH/ g,
(FB&) (A2) (FF%) O 2
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
% THET % THT
Renminbi AR® 3% 478 4% 140
-3% (478) -4% (140)
Canadian Dollars hnrc - - 8% 27,176
- - -8% (27,176)
It is assumed that the change in foreign exchange ElREERFEFH N REHRE

rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. It is also assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 31
March 2013.
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily from its borrowings, bank deposits and
loan receivables. Borrowings and bank deposits
at variable rates and loan receivables at fixed
rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
management monitors the Group’s exposure on
ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2013: 100
basis points) in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$66,416,000 (2013:
HK$51,913,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the company’s
exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 31 March
2013.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
equity investments held for trading purpose (note
25) and available-for-sale investment whose
returns are linked to a portfolio of securities listed
in Hong Kong and other major stock market in the
portfolio (note 24).

44 BIEEBERE @
(b) BIEBREEEERBEm@®

)
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TiZ M (@)

=
AREBZHNERBREIZHERS
Fo |ROTFAREEERESE
3 BB R R SRIT I BUA R E B
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EFRE R KA FHENRER

7R 8 3 4 PR A N R g HR R L
EH M EER - EREERFERS
RAKEAR ZEAR -

R-ZE—WE=/A=+—H @
Flezee PR T 10052 (=
T—=4F :100E%)  mMAAAH
ST TE - S AER 2
B 1% 5 F) R AR B8 B R 3E hn, R
1 4766,416,0008 T (— T — =
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(M)

44 BIEEREE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERBEEBZERBE®
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) (i) TEBREG)
Price risk (continued) EFEE e (48)
The Group’s listed investments are listed on the REE 2z ERER B BB
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy £ EASUEER ZFESH 2R
or sell trading securities are based on daily ENRIES B EREREFRR
monitoring of the performance of individual A &§% ﬁfj}fi%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ{’ﬁ
securities, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. “u_j 0 i%’ﬁ‘@ﬁx/ﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁx
Management manages this exposure by H}%EﬂkrgZ&:é ;_MEE;E%
maintaining a portfolio of investments with FLjc = $%iﬁi})§&ﬁm'z§%ﬁ
) : : _ FrEREERAIRGETHEEE
Fin‘ferent risk profiles. The avallable—fgr—sale IR PR HEE R IR 2 T
investment has been chosen based on their good TEHA o
value and growth prospects and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRAPENA EMEESEFTD
every 2% (2013: 12%) change in the equity prices B IERTN - R iR H
with all other variables held constant and based AZEEBENE  REZH2%
on their carrying amounts at the end of the TE—=F 12%) ZHRKE ©
reporting period. For the available-for-sale A HEEREmS E@%E
investment, the impact is deemed to be on the W ESHIREESHEEBERE
investment revaluation reserve and no account is £ MitEE EE AR EZSR]
given for factors such as impairment, which might e ERSNEMEEBERER L
have impact on the statement of profit or loss and RzZ= o
other comprehensive income.
Increase/
decrease in Increase/
Increase/ net profit/loss decrease in
decrease in and retained other equity
basis points earnings reserves
R B8
BER
BE%EH/ REBF HRAEHE
T 2,/ wd 2,/ WD
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THAT
2014 —E-mF
Trading securities R GiEH 2% 977 -
Available-for-sale investment ~ AJ{tHHEHE 2% - 28
2013 —E-=F
Trading securities RPEH 12% 6,015 =
Available-for-sale investment A {t HEFE 12% = 587
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is
represented by the aggregate balance of cash at
bank, loan receivables, advances to customers in
margin financing and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Before granting loans and margin financing to
outsiders, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment process to assess the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by borrower. Limits attributed to borrowers are
reviewed by the management regularly. The
Group obtains collateral from borrower to
minimize the credit risk in respect of the loan
receivables.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Trade receivables are due within
30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of
the trade and other receivables and margin
financing, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate allowances are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Group consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

44 BIEEBERE @
(b) BIEBREEEERBEm@®

(i)
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

168

(ii)

(iif)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of 31 March 2014, there is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to the
receivables, as no one customer is responsible
for more than 10% of the Group’s trade
receivables and margin financing. This was also
the case as at 31 March 2013.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
loan receivable, advances to customers in margin
financing and trade and other receivables are set
out in notes 26, 27 and 28, respectively.

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group’s activities are subject to
various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the Securities and Futures
Commission in accordance with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “HKSFO”).
The Group is closely monitored to the liquidity
gap to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid
capital to fund its business commitments and to
comply with the relevant Financial Resources
Rules under the HKSFO. As part of the measures
to safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained a
balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the uses of the shareholders’
loan, subordinated loan and banking facilities in
order to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long terms.
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B EpE ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BMEEKEEBZERBE®
policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REESEAR (S
The following table details the remaining T%ﬁ&l]ﬁ%l&$@ﬁ#ﬁ’};
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting SR B ERREH R ZFEE L
period of the Group and Company’s non- fEmER  TIiRIE S ’j;ﬁﬁgfﬁiﬁ{ﬁ
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on mE BRERRAEHONEGFE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (KM AZE AR REH KR
interest payments computed using contractual EHEMEGFE) Z2F SR K
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current at RAAR I HERNRIZZEH
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest HAESF -
date the company can be required to pay:
The Group NEH
2014 2013
Z5-|E 5k
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted  one year or Over Carying  undiscounted ~ one year or Over
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
SHRER -Ehg AIFER —Eng
REE ReRELE EEX i FEE Rensug EEX il o
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000
TERL T TERL Tin Tin T Tin T

Trade and other payables BAREMENES 1,800,252 1,800,252 1,800,252 - 810,640 810,640 810,640 -
Amounts due to shareholders  ERREFUE 2,847,111 2,882,311 2,882,311 - 1,661,111 1,661,111 1,661,111 -
Loan from arelated company ~ RE—FEERALH 2052639 2996929 2,996,929 - 20898% 234188 2324188 -
Subordinated loans kESR 700,000 721,750 721,750 - 700,000 721,750 721750 -
Bank loans HIER 1,324,000 1,335,519 1,335,519 - 150,000 161,33 151,33 -
Promissory notes BHE - - - - 961,200 980,424 980,424 =

9,624,002 9,736,761 9,736,761 - 6,072,772 6,649,428 6,649,428 -
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

170

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

44 BIEEBRERE @
(b) BIEREEEERBE Mm@

the fair values of held-for-trading investments with
standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with
reference of quoted market prices;

the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
is based on net asset value of the investment fund
at the end of the reporting period;

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions
as input.
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(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) RBESERE
The Company KAF
2014 2013
= Sk FcF
Total Total
contractual Within coniractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted ~ one year or Over Camyjing  undiscounted ~ one yearor Over
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
AHRER -Fpg aRER —ERg
FEE BeRE4E EEX #a-f FAE ReRsts EEX feiomcd
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR TR TR TR ThRL ThRL TARL TR
Trade and other payables BARAMERES
including amounts BEERKE
due to subsidiaries NTEV 1,163,424 1,163,424 1,163,424 - 121,167 121,167 121,167 -
Amounts due to shareholders  ERTRRUR 2,410,000 2,445,200 2,445,200 - 900,000 900,000 900,000 =
Promissory notes EGED - - - - 961,200 980,424 980,424 -
35344 3608624 360864 - 58T 2608191 2608191 -
(c) Fair value estimation (c) AFEMEF
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities PREERERMBEZATEDET
are determined as follows: PIFIEEE ¢

BB IR GRS A5V B
FMEEBECRIFEEREZR
FEDSEMBIMEETE

AL EEREEZATFEDR
BRBERRZREESEETF

BETE :

HiteBAERSBARZ AT
B RAREEER - EAT
BRZBETEXHERALE
CHBRSRES N AR ER
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value estimation (continued)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
company’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2014 and
31 March 2013 except amounts due from (to)
subsidiaries which are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it
is not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value by level of the following
fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Level2 —

Level3 —

44

MEEREREw

()

(d)

SHNESRMEBFRAF

NS Rl )

EERAE R-E—mME=A=+—
AR-—T—=#%=A=+—A0 A2
7] AR SH K AN PR B S 3R R B BR 2 &
EEkcmaBEZEAEEEQNTE
HBE EZEERR 2B REERTE
BIH 2 U (BB R B 58k o
ERZERDT BEEQATELEES
% °

ETHTRNFERG

EEMBHMEERNET7H/RE - ARF
Bt EZ 2RI AR TR FER
ERRIEHEE

F—HB — HRBEXAEREERT
IZHIRE CREHE) -
FME — BEIREAETENE—
RBIREEAABRRSE
MBAER - TREER
(BNE#) M (BB
BERITE)BREE -
AREERRENBAL
R I ER AT ABREG
B ISBUR (B A B
RRIMBAER)
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44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44 BIEEMRERE
(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial (d) €eMIAEXFERR @
instruments (continued)
The following table presents the financial instruments TRINER - WMER-_T—=F
that are measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014 =A=t—HUAFEFEZERT
and 2013. B o
At 31 March 2014 R-ZFE—HmNFE=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— 5 EZR A F=A @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FHERT FTHERT THERT
Assets BE
Held-for-trading securities HIEBEHRS 48,692 - - 48,692
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments - 1,387 - 1,387
48,692 1,387 - 50,079
At 31 March 2013 R-—g-=#=g=+—¢
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— A E FE=MA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHETT FHTT
Assets BE
Held-for-trading securities BIEEEZES 50,121 - - 50,121
Available-for-sale ARHERE
investments - 4,895 - 4,895
50,121 4,895 - 55,016

172

During the year, there are no significant transfers

between Level 1 and Level 2.
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45 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 45
The Group leases its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements, and the terms of the
leases range from one to ten years and the leases are
repayable in fixed monthly installments. The lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the respective
lease terms. There is no arrangement for contingent

(a)

rent payments.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivable under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

REHERE

(a)

AEERBEEHELHEERE T
kT HENF-FE2+FIE
HeZAEEI YN - HEWZA
REBHHERSES AKBELE
RRAHES M RIEL ZHE -

R-E-—MOF=A=+—H A&H
RAAREZEHEERT 2 BiERK
RIEESEEN T HRE2IE

2014 2013

—E—MF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 10,198 2,537
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 36,441 751
After five years HE% 41,313 =
87,952 3,288

The Group entered into non-cancelable operating lease
arrangements with landlords and the terms of the

leases range from one to three years.

The lease payments recognised as expenses are as

AEBEEXTE LA RELEE
% BN F—FE=F1F-

RRFAXZEEHRAEMT :

follows:
2014 2013
—E—NmEF e
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FBT
Minimum lease payments RIERERE 35,955 34,897
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45 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (coniinued) 45 #&R&FHERIE @)

(b)  (continued) (b) &
At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum R-ZE—NF=A=1+—8  A&£H
lease rent payables under non-cancellable operating RAAHELEEEE TN 2 BB ER
leases falling due as follows: B IKAE & A2 ZER T 51 B I 8R -
2014 2013
—EF-mF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Within one year —FR 30,013 32,341
After one year but within five years —FREAFA 438 28,141
30,451 60,482
46 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 46 EERIAEE
LIABILITIES
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
Capital commitments in respect of WRMEEE - BB MEE 2
acquisition of property, plant and BAREIE
equipment:
— contracted but not provided for — BRI EARR IS HER ARG
in the financial statements - 11,374
— authorised but not contracted for — BEREERTLD - 363
- 11,737
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46 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 46 EERIAEE @

LlABlLlTlES (continued)

Subsequent to the year end date, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary Good Start Group Limited received a tax notice
issued by Macau Financial Services Bureau dated 29 April
2014 assessing its Macau Complementary Tax payable for
the year of assessment 2009 and 2010 to be approximately
HK$15,000,000 and HK$20,000,000 respectively. Good Start
Group Limited lodged an objection letter on 22 May 2014 to
appeal against the notice according to stipulated appeal
procedures. In the opinion of directors, the Group has valid
grounds for the appeal and they believed that the gaming
revenue generated through Good Start Group Limited’s
Service Agreement with SUJM is not subject to Macau
Complementary Tax since it is derived from SJM gaming
revenue, which gaming revenue is exempted pursuant to
Macau Law. Accordingly, no provision of taxation is
considered given the chances for the chargeability is remote.

If the Group’s appeal for year of assessment 2009 and 2010
is eventually unsuccessful and if the same basis of taxation
applies for subsequent years of assessment from 2011 to
2013, the Group will have to pay approximately
HK$118,000,000 of Macau Complementary Tax for its mass
market business in Macau since 2009. Pursuant to the Macau
Complementary Tax law, the assessment on an estimated
assessable profit in a year of assessment will lapse in five
consecutive years after that year of assessment, thus no tax
liability was expected for the year of assessment before
2009.

The Company had no material contingent liabilities at the end
of the reporting period.

REFEBR  ANEE 22 EH B AT Good
Start Group Limited 1 Z1 2 T 87 B /= B 2
HEA-ZT—WFNA -+ 18 27 EBa
Z FEHER=ZZETNER=_T—TFRH
FEZENTBMAAMSHEITE IO A
15,000,000 7T & 20,000,0007% 7T ° Good
Start Group Limited &L E EFEFR=F
—MFRA-T-HARXREE  EHEB
MERL LF-EFSFZRAE AEBEEFRR
LFEE mMEFERE - B iBGood Start
Group Limited B3 8 18 A7 5] 37 AR 75 155 75 B2 A
BRI BAMTBRIERGE@ERY - KA
REREREBZ2IEY NG - A BIEY K=
ERBRPVERIES F R o S FERTL A 82
MK - WA ERIELTIIRREE -

WAEER —TENFER T —ZFRHF
B Z EFRERARARAERT) - MIERRFE
ERAR - T——FE_ T =—F7HEF
REE  AEEHEREAE-ZTTALFIUR
ZRFRSEREMBREMESH T
118,000,000/8 T ° R IE R FIFT 1S 7T X
5 RBREE A ERFE A 2 R SR
ZRREERBER TR WIESH =
TETNFRIZ AR FELEEAFHFAE -

RIBERR - ARARAEEAERKARIE -
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47 UNDERWRITING AND SUB- 47 BHEE D EHEEAE

UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS

Group

TEE
Name of Clients 2014 2013
BEFEW —E—NF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T

Company B ~AA)B 36,000 -

Company C UNCIL®; 42,001 -

Company D ~a]D 91,800 -

Company E ~AE - 140,959

Company F ~aF - 122,500

Company G ~alG - 96,519

169,801 359,978

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values RRARESZRA  BHEERSBIHETHEZAF

of the underwriting and sub-underwriting arrangements are EHAEBME X TERX °

insignificant to the Group.

48 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND 48 ERAERTRBAERS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRIt E B REREAME D HE 2R P R iEH

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered Hh - REBEHEIT NIIERREES MEFER

into the following material related party and connected Z ©

transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEBEAEMNES  BERAAFE
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as EXMN 2RI (RMFE17HE) kRE
disclosed in note 17 and certain of the highest paid Fa&m ¥ E 8 T 2 RIE (R FE18
employees as disclosed in note 18 as follows: ®E) AT

2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits REES R 46,522 37,399
Post-employment benefits BEER & R A 34 28
46,556 37,427

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (note 9). B < B xERT A [ B TRAS ] (FiiEE9) o
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48 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions which are also connected transactions
(“CT”)/continuing connected transactions (“CCT")

48 ERFEELFTRBERZ @)

(b) == WmWFE=A=+—HLFE
AN REEZET I ERBERR
5 ZERXRSGNHA/LTHRANET ZH
BERH(IBERS ]/ BRE@BERS

under the Listing Rules.

(FEEERZ]) -

Transaction

type under
Listing Rules
Name of related party Nature of transaction EHRAET 2014 2013
BREL AR REME ZRZEE —E-mF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Chu and Li's Family Brokerage income CCT
RERFERK % HSRLIUN REBERS 1,382 710
Maximum amount of IPO financing CCT
EaBE R AREERER REWERS - =
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CCT
EeRETHER REWER S 116,159 179,654
Interest income CCT
FIEBA SEWER S 1,676 1,274
Directors of subsidiaries Brokerage income CT
and associates LSRN MERS 187 138
MEBARESREBE Maximum amount of IPO financing CT
At BEemBERRREERER HERS - 4,343
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CT
EeRETHER HMERS 1,746 778
Interest income CT
FSHA BER S 12 4
Kingston Finance Limited Interest expense CT
(note 2) FBRX BEXH 40,658 16,148
SHEHBER AR Management fee income (note 1) CT
(ffF2) EEBWA Bzt 1) BERX S 600 600
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Management fee income (note 1) CT
Limited (note 2) BERBWA (Bt 1) MERS 600 450
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Underwriting commission and CCT
Limited (#f2#2) financial advisory income REBERS
BIHME KM EEREA 3,310 -
Mr. Lee Wai Man (note 3) Consultancy fee (note 1) CT
FENEAE (H15E3) ERER(Ht1) ERXS 1,000 1,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah Staff quarter rental expenses 0])
FAELL ETH2HSHR WiER 5 894 894
SHLEHMEMBRAT —TNFFR 177
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48 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)
(b) (continued) (b)

48 EREAEFTRBER S »

For the continuing connected transactions above, the
independent non-executive directors have reviewed
and confirm that the continuing connected transactions
are in the ordinary and usual course of business, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in page 177 of the Annual Report in accordance
with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Notes:

1. This transaction was transacted at a price agreed
between the parties and in accordance with the
agreement.

2. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah had controlling interest in the
company.

S Mr. Lee Wai Man is the father of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.
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49 SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTION
(i) On 7 June 2013, the Group issued CAD50,000,000 of
promissory note to the Defendant Group for the transfer
of potash permits. The promissory note was then set-off
against the loan receivable as disclosed in note 26.

(i)  On 31 March 2014, HK$1,010,000,000 of promissory
notes were settled by Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah as disclosed
in note 33 and 37.

50 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with the current period’s presentation.

51 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
REPORTING DATE

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 14.

52 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014.

49

50

51

52

BEXBRERS

() R-Z—Z=F,AtH A&£ERE
EREE IR BRSBTS
50,000,000 I T Z 7 5, Z 4% o 34 a0 bt
IC6FTINGE BUAAN ZHRELIAE
I E TR o

(i) FRANHIFEI3 M I7TFAHE  KR—ZT—
FZA=+—H TAELZIEEHM
A%01,010,000,000 7 7T 2 7 3 24 o

bEaHF
ETLBUTFOAELRAE  AFaRHE
25 -

BERRFRABREH

B R - EFRR N RBRE -
— SRR 14 PO B -

#EB R

MBRREX _—_F—HFAA-_THARE
£ RHUE R IR RETIE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

HFMBEHME

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as

AEEREREMBERECXEUNREERARE
BME - DRFAKERMBHRER  YEFEEE
o #INT

below:

2014 2013 2012 2010 2009

—E-NE —FT-=ZF —ZT—— —E-TF —ZTNF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FET FET FET FHET

(restated)

(E7)

Turnover L] 1,847,685 1,377,988 1,573,971 541,247 413,739
Profit before taxation BT AT A 900,955 614,242 639,903 100,904 231,687
Profit attributable to owners BB AEIERF 771,060 537,884 548,988 99,558 229,915
Total assets BEAE 25,873,931 21651262 19,518,211 3,875,279 3,252,731
Total liabilities BERE (9,984,042)  (6,824,247)  (5,374,857) (55,526) (44,815)
Non-controlling interest IR (8,098) (13,438) (11,289) (3,886) (2,540)
Shareholders’ fund BERES 15,881,791 14,813,577 14,132,065 3,815,867 3,205,376

Notes:

et

(1)  For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company first adopted (1)
amendments to HKAS 17 made under “Improvements to HKFRSs

2009”. The comparative figures for 2009 were restated to conform

with current year presentation.

(2) 2012 figures represent period for fifteen months ended 31 March  (2)

2012.
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